A Meeting of the COUNCIL will be held at the Civic Offices,
Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN on THURSDAY 23
JULY 2015 AT 7.30 PM

Andy Couldrick
Chief Executive
Published on 15 July 2015

This meeting will be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s
website.
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog
from this meeting. The use of these images or recordings is
not under the Council’s control.

Our Vision
A great place to live, an even better place to do business

Our Priorities

Improve educational attainment and focus on every child
achieving their potential
Invest in regenerating towns and villages, support social
and economic prosperity, whilst encouraging business
growth
Ensure strong sustainable communities that are vibrant and
supported by well designed development
Tackle traffic congestion in specific areas of the Borough
Improve the customer experience when accessing Council
services
The Underpinning Principles

Offer excellent value for your Council Tax
Provide affordable homes
Look after the vulnerable
Improve health, wellbeing and quality of life
Maintain and improve the waste collection, recycling and
fuel efficiency
Deliver quality in all that we do

To: The Members of Wokingham Borough Council

ITEM
NO.

WARD

SUBJECT

17.

APOLOGIES
To receive any apologies for absence.

18.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 19
March 2015 and the Annual Meeting held on 21 May
2015.

19.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest

20.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
To answer any public questions

PAGE
NO.

7 - 46

A period of 30 minutes will be allowed for members of
the public to ask questions submitted under notice.
The Council welcomes questions from members of the
public about the work of the Council
Subject to meeting certain timescales, questions can
relate to general issues concerned with the work of the
Council or an item which is on the Agenda for this
meeting. For full details of the procedure for
submitting questions please contact the Democratic
Services Section on the numbers given below or go to
www.wokingham.gov.uk/publicquestions
21.

PETITIONS
To receive any petitions which Members or members
of the public wish to present.

22.

MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements by the Mayor

23.

None Specific

CHANGES TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE STRUCTURE
To consider the amalgamation of the Corporate
Services and Community Partnerships Overview and
Scrutiny Committees and the creation of a Community
and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
RECOMMENDATION:
Council is asked to:
1) agree that the Corporate Services and Community
Partnership Overview and Scrutiny Committees be

47 - 60

amalgamated to become the Community and
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee;
2) agree the terms of reference of the amalgamated
committee as set out in Appendix 1 to the report;
3) agree that the Community and Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny Committee consist of 7 Conservative
Group Members and 1 Liberal Democrat Member,
plus 2 substitute Members per group, as advised
by the Group Leaders;
4) note that the Chairman and Vice Chairman will be
appointed at the first meeting of the amalgamated
Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.
24.

STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL,
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS AND DEPUTY EXECUTIVE
MEMBERS
To receive any statements by the Leader of the
Council, Executive Members and Deputy Executive
Members.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.23 the total
time allocated to this item shall not exceed 20 minutes,
and no Member shall speak for more than 5 minutes.

25.

STATEMENT FROM COUNCIL OWNED
COMPANIES
To receive any statements from Directors of Council
Owned Companies.
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.24 the total
time allocated to this item shall not exceed 10 minutes,
and no Director, except with the consent of Council,
shall speak for more than 3 minutes.

26.

MEMBER QUESTION TIME
To answer any member questions
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to
ask questions submitted under Notice
Any questions not dealt with within the allotted time will
be dealt with in a written reply.

26.1

None Specific

Beth Rowland has asked the Executive Member for
Children's Services the following question:

Question
It is the Conservative government’s policy for all
schools to become academies. Is that what this
Council wants for our schools?
26.2

None Specific

Lindsay Ferris has asked the Executive Member for
Environment the following question:
Question
Why has Wokingham slipped down the local authority
ratings for recycling rates and now is only in 232nd
position out of 352 local authorities?

26.3

None Specific

Prue Bray has asked the Executive Member for
Resident Services the following question:
Question
It has been almost 4 years since the Council
abandoned its attempt to hand over the running of
Borough’s library service to a private company. This
plan had met with significant public opposition. At the
time, the Liberal Democrats, as the Opposition,
recognised the need to make savings, but felt that
there were alternatives such as a charitable trust or a
shared service which would meet the same objectives
without introducing any element of private profit. Both
of those alternatives were dismissed by the
Conservative administration.
Since then there have been no significant changes to
the way the library services are delivered but the
financial position of the Council has worsened and is
likely to worsen further in the next few years. It was
clear from the public response to your privatisation
plans that libraries are valued. They, and we, want a
sustainable future for the library service.
What are your plans for the future of the Borough’s
libraries?

26.4

None Specific

Tom McCann has asked the Executive Member for
Planning and Highways the following question:
Question
What are your plans for resurfacing roads for the next
3 years?

27.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD
MATTERS
A period of 20 minutes will be allowed for Members to
ask questions in relation to the latest circulated volume
of Minutes of Meetings and Ward Matters

28.

MOTIONS
To consider any motions
In accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.11.2 a
maximum period of 30 minutes will be allowed for each
Motion to be moved, seconded and debated, including
dealing with any amendments. At the expiry of the 30minute period debate will cease immediately, the
mover of the Motion or amendment will have the right
of reply before the Motion or amendment is put to the
vote.

28.1

None Specific

Motion 368 submitted by Lindsay Ferris
This Council commits to include both the public and
Overview and Scrutiny in the budget setting process
for 2016/17 and in all future years, and will consult in a
timely manner on budget choices, such as the priorities
for spending and the potential impact and
consequences of these choices.

28.2

None Specific

Motion 369 submitted by Beth Rowland
Government per pupil funding for Wokingham primary
and secondary schools is the lowest in the country.
This Council will actively lobby local MPs, the
Secretary of State for Education, and the Department
of Education until the level of funding for our schools is
improved.

CONTACT OFFICER
Anne Hunter
Tel
Email
Postal Address

Service Manager, Democratic Services
0118 9746051
anne.hunter@wokingham.gov.uk
Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL
HELD ON 19 MARCH 2015 FROM 7.00 PM TO 10.35 PM
Members Present
Councillors: UllaKarin Clark (Mayor), Parry Batth (Deputy Mayor), Mark Ashwell,
Alistair Auty, Keith Baker, Chris Bowring, Prue Bray, Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager,
Kay Gilder, Mike Gore, Guy Grandison, Kate Haines, Mike Haines,
Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Tim Holton, Philip Houldsworth,
Dianne King, Norman Jorgensen, Pauline Jorgensen, John Kaiser, David Lee,
Abdul Loyes, Tom McCann, Ken Miall, Philip Mirfin, Ian Pittock, Bob Pitts, Barrie Patman,
Anthony Pollock, Nick Ray, Malcolm Richards, Angus Ross, Beth Rowland,
Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, David Sleight, Chris Smith, Wayne Smith, Bill Soane,
Rob Stanton, Alison Swaddle, Paul Swaddle, Dee Tomlin, Simon Weeks, Bob Wyatt and
Shahid Younis
90.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from David Chopping, Gary Cowan, John Halsall,
Nicky Jerrome, Julian McGhee-Sumner and Stuart Munro.
91.
MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
The Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19 February 2015 were confirmed as a
correct record and signed by the Mayor.
92.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Tom McCann declared a Personal Interest on the grounds that his daughter
was employed by a company involved with the Wokingham Town Centre Regeneration
Project.
Councillors Malcolm Richards, Chris Bowring, Lindsay Ferris and Rachelle ShepherdDuBey declared Personal Interests in the amendment proposed to Agenda Item 91.2
Motion 366 on the grounds that discussion around the amendment could have centred on
the Elms Field and they were all members of the Planning Committee. None of these
Members voted on this item.
93.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.
93.1

Laura Blumenthal asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:

Question
What is being done to improve South Lake, specifically the dam?
Answer
South Lake is a beautiful amenity for local residents to enjoy on their doorstep. As well as
grounds maintenance responsibilities, Wokingham Borough Council is also responsible for
ensuring the safety of residents through the ongoing and regular maintenance of the dam.
Regular inspections plus site engineer visits ensure that appropriate work is carried out in
the interests of safety under Section 10 of the 1975 Reservoirs Act. These works are

crucial to enable the continuation of regular and thorough monitoring of the site as a
whole.
The following works have recently been completed:
 Clearance of small pathways from the bottom to the top of the embankment to
maintain a clear access route along the bottom of the embankment. This was to
ensure the continuity of regular checks for issues such as animal burrows,
seepage, instability or any signs of irregularity;
 Health and Safety works carried out to all trees highlighted within a recent tree
inspection of the area.
In addition, screening from the top of the embankment is a concern for residents who
overlook this area. We will therefore be erecting a form of screening which will be
permanently attached to the inside of the fence to protect the privacy of residents. We
hope this will also prevent planting along the embankment which may impede safety
inspections.
Supplementary Question
Are there any other improvements planned for South Lake?
Supplementary Answer
Indeed, in addition and in response to a local petition, we are working with the South Lake
Angling Club to trial a form of chalk treatment at South Lake in an attempt to promote the
breakdown of sediment and reduce the odour highlighted by residents. This may also
incorporate some reed planting at the appropriate time.
We will continue to work closely with residents and local ward members to ensure that we
communicate any works on site and are able to continue to fulfil our health and safety
obligations.
I would be happy to arrange a meeting with the Council Officer dealing with this so that
you could monitor progress direct.
93.2

Shaun Hanna asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:

Question
In order to build their part of the Winnersh Relief Road, Wokingham Borough Council will
have to use some land by the motorway bridge on Reading Road which is owned by the
Highways Agency. What is the current status of the negotiations to buy the land?
Answer
The Highways Agency wrote to Mr John Redwood MP on 24 February 2014 advising that
the land was deemed to be surplus to their requirements and with the intention that the
land be sold to the Council for the provision of the relief road. The sale of the land will be
at market value in accordance with Treasury guidance ‘Managing Public Money.’
Supplementary Question
Presumably this requires some negotiation to reach a price acceptable to both. When last
have you had any contact with the Highways Agency?

Supplementary Answer
This is a two part question. Of course there is also the District Valuer who can step in and
arbitrate between the two of us. When was the last time; I cannot actually tell you. I will
find out and get back to you if that is ok.
94.
PETITIONS
The following member of public and Member presented petitions in relation to the matters
indicated.
The Mayor’s decision as to the action to be taken is set out against each petition.
Mr Clive
Jones

Petition regarding M4 Smart Motorway – noise reduction measures between
Junctions 11 and 10.
To be forwarded to the Executive Member for Planning and Highways

Kay Gilder
Petition regarding the Number 19 bus.
To be forwarded to the Executive Member for Planning and Highways
95.
MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
Council noted the pre-circulated list of Mayoral and Deputy-Mayoral engagements.
96.
PRESENTATION BY THE CHIEF FIRE OFFICER, ANDY FRY
The Council received a presentation from Andy Fry, Chief Fire Officer of Royal Berkshire
Fire and Rescue Service (RBFRS), Deputy Chief Fire Officer Trevor Ferguson and Area
Manager Gene Ashe. In his presentation the Chief Fire Officer referred to why the Fire
Authority had reviewed and reset its policy direction and outlined the financial situation.
He also outlined the Strategic Commitments and Policy Statements and what the RBFRS
had to offer in terms of assets and interventions.
Following the presentation, Members asked a number of questions relating to:
o what else the Fire Authority would like the Council to do to strengthen partnership
working;
o working with the Council to link Councillors with their local fire stations;
o working with primary school aged children;
o combining of Ambulance and Fire Service as first responders;
o recruitment and retention.
The Chief Fire Officer answered these questions at the meeting.
Members thanked the Chief Fire Officer for his presentation.
97.

APPROVAL OF A PERIOD OF ABSENCE FROM MEETINGS BY COUNCILLOR
KATE HAINES
This item was withdrawn as Councillor Kate Haines was present at the meeting.
98.

ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE AND OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES

The Council considered the annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee and Overview and Scrutiny Committees as set out within the Agenda.
Tim Holton introduced and summarised the report, highlighting some of the key activities
undertaken by all the Overview and Scrutiny Committees over the municipal year.
He thanked all Committee Members for their involvement and Democratic Services for
their support.
Members, Officers and the public were encouraged to submit scrutiny review suggestions
for the next municipal year and were reminded of the criteria for such suggestions.
Michael Firmager also paid tribute to all the Members and Officers who had been involved
in the work of the Committees and supporting them over the year.
It was proposed by Tim Holton and seconded by Michael Firmager that the report be
noted.
Upon being put to the vote, it was:
RESOLVED: That the report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee be noted.
99.
HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 2014-15
The Council considered the Health and Wellbeing Board Annual Report 2014/15 as set out
within the Agenda.
Keith Baker introduced the report and summarised the work of the Health and Wellbeing
Board over the previous year. He also highlighted that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy
had been refreshed and informed Members of a funding transfer from NHS England.
It was proposed by Keith Baker and seconded by Charlotte Haitham Taylor that the report
be noted.
Upon being put to the vote, it was:
RESOLVED: That the report from the Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board be
noted.
100. AUDIT COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
The Council considered the annual report of the Audit Committee as set out within the
Agenda.
Guy Grandison introduced the report and highlighted key changes which had had an
impact on the work of the Committee, including the creation of a Shared Internal Audit
Service with the Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead Council and the transfer of
Benefit Fraud Investigations to the Department of Work and Pension’s Single Fraud
Investigation Service.
It was noted that the Committee received regular training which Overview and Scrutiny
Committee members were also welcome to attend.

Councillor Grandison thanked Members, Officers and Ernst & Young for their hard work.
Chris Smith thanked Officers for their responses to the challenge offered by the
Committee.
It was proposed by Guy Grandison and seconded by Chris Smith that the report be noted.
Upon being put to the vote, it was:
RESOLVED: That the report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee be noted.
101. STANDARDS COMMITTEE ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15
The Council considered the Standards Committee Annual Report 2014/15 as set out within
the agenda.
Rob Stanton introduced the report and detailed the work of the Committee throughout the
municipal year. He highlighted that it was important that Members were mindful of making
declarations of interest when required.
He thanked the members of the Committee and Officers for their hard work and support.
Pauline Helliar-Symons reiterated the importance of declaring interests and encouraged all
Members to attend the training session which would be held later in the year on the matter.
It was proposed by Rob Stanton and seconded by Pauline Helliar-Symons that the report
be noted.
Upon being put to the vote, it was:
RESOLVED: That the report from the Chairman of the Standards Committee be noted.
102. REPORTS FROM MEMBERS APPOINTED TO OUTSIDE BODIES
The Council considered the annual reports from Members appointed to outside bodies as
set out within the Agenda.
It was proposed by UllaKarin Clark and seconded by Parry Batth that reports from
Members appointed to Outside Bodies be noted.
Keith Baker suggested that Overview and Scrutiny review the participation on all of the
Outside Bodies to ensure that value was being added. Prue Bray commented that this was
something which scrutiny was currently considering.
Parry Batth emphasised the importance of the appointments adding value to the
organisations.
Upon being put to the vote, it was:
RESOLVED: That the reports from Members appointed to Outside Bodies be noted.
103.

STATEMENTS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL, EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
AND DEPUTY EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
Keith Baker, Leader of the Council

First I would like to offer my congratulations to Councillor Prue Bray, Leader of the
Opposition, for being selected as the Parliamentary Candidate for Rochester and Strood
for the Liberal Democrat Party. As Leader of the Opposition she has a vital role to play in
this Council in questioning the actions of the administration. We are often reminded of this
fact by Prue during debates here in this Chamber, many times. I actually have every faith
in Councillor Bray being able to fight a vigorous campaign in her new home whilst
continuing to be an effective Leader of the Opposition. I am sure she will be comforted in
knowing that we will not be following in the footsteps of her colleague Clive Jones, the
Parliamentary candidate for Wokingham, in putting out press releases saying she is not
capable of doing both roles.
My second point is a more serious point. As we are all aware, the issue of child sexual
exploitation has been exposed in nearby Oxfordshire. When this happened it triggered all
Councillors to pose the simple question, could it happen here? After all we are all
corporate parents so we all have a responsibility. Following both main political parties
raising their concerns to me, the Director of Children’s Services recommended
commissioning a review focusing on how well WBC are responding to the emerging
concerns about children’s sexual exploitation, and prevention etc. This will extract learning
from Rotherham and Oxfordshire as well as other cases. As Leader of the Council I am
totally in agreement with this approach. This was communicated to the Opposition on 9
March and included a request for a nomination from them for a Councillor to work with the
Lead Member in defining the terms of reference. Now children’s sexual exploitation or
CSE is such a serious issue that it has absolutely no place in party politics. So I was
surprised that after this communication, which agreed to the Opposition’s request, there
was a flurry of activity by them over the following days; a website article, personal calls to
the press and now we see a question to the Executive meeting on 26 March, all repeating
this same request for this review. All this many days after they had the answer. Now I
know that Councillor Bray will say that this is all legitimate because it provided
transparency but transparency should not be selective. Despite knowing the answer
several days before their public activities, not once, not once did they mention it had been
agreed and that they were going to be involved in setting the terms of reference. I firmly
believe the reasons simply did not stack up.
Philip Mirfin, Executive Member for Regeneration and Communities
The last month has been an incredibly important month to town centre regeneration. We
successfully secured planning consent for the new shops and the public square at Peach
Place and have been talking to our residents about our other proposals for Wokingham
town centre, with positive results. We have just finished consulting on our proposals for
the new Carnival Leisure Hub where we will be extending the existing sports centre with
new indoor halls, a new bowling alley and a multi-storey car park. We are currently
consulting on our proposals for Elms Field where we remain committed to giving residents
a greater variety of shops in the town, leisure facilities such as a new boutique cinema and
a substantial new town park. Talking to our residents remains at the heart of what we do
and we will be continuing to work with them as we move forward. With opportunities to
discuss, detailed design elements such as the approach to shop fronts, signage and
landscaping as well as the design of the town park and play area. Our joint work with the
Town Council on the refurbishment of the town market square is coming on at a pace and
announcements of these proposals are expected within the next few weeks.
Now moving onto communities. Community Development and Tennant Services continue
to develop their partnership work by delivering communities Summer Fun Days. Dates are
currently being finalised across the five areas. The Berkshire Young and Centre Forward

event is taking place on Saturday 11 April at the Rainbow Centre. The main aim of the
event is to engage with local young people, providing a range of age appropriate activities.
It will also provide an opportunity to consult with young people, in order to find out their
needs and wishes. At Shinfield an Easter holiday trip to Paradise Wildlife Park is taking
place on 16 April. This is facilitated by the Community Development Service supported by
cross service working with Tenants, Public Health and Children’s Services. 70 parents,
carers and children are already signed to attend. The Community House Garden Project
supported by Brunel University is set to commence in late spring and this project will
provide a garden to be used as the community development work. At Norreys tag rugby
has started with 10 young participants already signed up for the second session. Lifelong
Learning will also provide cooking with11 learners and the popular Make and Take, arts
and crafts sessions are now scheduled during the Easter holidays. Gorse Ride are
offering the Sandmartins Golf Extreme Project providing local youngsters with the
opportunity to access golf facilities. This is now confirmed and scheduled for the end of
April, May and June. Their forum there meets again in March and is discussing waste and
recycling. In Woodley the partnership with Emmanuel Church is developing activities for
young children and includes 5-a-side football at Goals. An inter-generational event at
Alexandra Place in partnership with Southlake Primary Schools junior wardens is also
happening on 24 March, this to include fun and physical games, something for all. Now
Madam Mayor, I would like to pass to my deputy Mark Ashwell to cover other elements.
Mark Ashwell, Deputy Executive Member for Regeneration and Communities
As Deputy Executive Member for Regeneration and Communities it is my pleasure to give
a brief highlight of my two standalone responsibilities; asset management and the
voluntary and community sector.
In asset management we have embarked on an asset review programme. This effectively
is a massive audit of £714 million worth of assets Borough wide. This has enabled a very
positive engagement with our towns and parishes. I mean it has not been without its
challenges but our mission is to engender the collaboration of local government and
community for the benefit of all. I can report that this assets review programme is nicely
underway in Woodley, very nearly complete there in fact, Earley just begun and Twyford to
follow and a programme to include all of our towns and parishes. The aim is to produce
proactive recommendations for all of our Borough assets. We have also experienced a
really positive by-product of regular interaction with our Environment and Children’s
Services colleagues where a lot of our assets are actually managed. We are picking up
service issues much earlier, enabling the planning of work on their behalf and the delivery
of properly considered solutions.
Onto the voluntary and community sector. This has been a very welcome new
responsibility to our portfolio and as such we are looking to create better and stronger links
between the voluntary and community sector and the asset management element of our
portfolio. We have instigated a review of the social return on investment gained from
organisations we give grants to. This should make sure our money hits the right spots.
This in turn will help with our mission to match the Borough’s assets to the community we
all serve. We are making progress in our ambition to have a very different type of
conversation with the voluntary and community sector. Our aim is that we want the
voluntary and community sector to become active partners in both the design and the
delivery of services and support of our Wokingham communities. An example of this in
January and February is we ran three Co-Production Network events bringing together the
voluntary and community sector with residents and service users. Each session had a
single theme focusing in turn on mental health, autism and then families. These three

sessions have identified positive actions that will be taken forward to the Health and
Wellbeing Board via our Place and Community Partnership. So Madam Mayor, across
these two disciplines we are truly achieving in our mission to enable via collaboration.
Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Deputy Executive Member for Children’s Services
Firstly I would also like to add my personal congratulations to Councillor Bray on her
recent selection as a Parliamentary candidate.
On 2 March two Young Commissioners started on our new apprenticeship programme,
improving opportunities for young people and showing that the Borough Council is a leader
for other organisations and companies. Our Young Commissioners will be the champion
of young people and add real value in testing the effectiveness of our services from a
young people’s point of view. Yesterday Joel and Hope came to the Wokingham
Safeguarding Board and presented one of their first projects. This was the Board’s annual
safeguarding report but written for children and young people, demonstrating that papers
can be produced in digestible formats. Their report was just five pages long, from the
original report which was 33. I think we can learn a great deal from them.
The Local Safeguarding Board, under the leadership of the new Chair has enacted new
challenge sessions in regard to the Board’s priority areas of work, with all agencies
accounting for the effectiveness of their work. The first session held this month focused on
Early Help and received accounts as to the effectiveness of services from Thames Valley
Police, Children’s Social Care and the Healthcare Trust. In line with the Safeguarding
Board’s programme of work the Board received a report on the effectiveness and impact of
the Multi-Agency Reducing Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy, which seeks to train the
workforce, identify young people at risk and protect them from harm. The report was
presented by Thames Valley Police and Children’s Social Care leaders. One of the
activities achieved is the training of 39 staff who will then themselves train others across
the children’s network. The training was delivered by the University of Kent. The Child
Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group have commissioned a programme of awareness
raising which has included visiting a large number of primary schools; speaking to 4,270
pupils about exploitation. They have also made 71 visits to secondary schools speaking to
5,915 students. There is evidence of impact in terms of effective identification of young
people who are at risk and effective Police and Social Care joint work to address risk.
Lastly, I wanted to end on a lighter note. Bridges, our short care breaks service in the
Borough for children and young people with disabilities between the ages of 8 and 18 was
subject to an unannounced inspection at Christmas time. Unannounced inspections
always come at a really good time. It was judged to be outstanding. Inspectors said that
the service is not only outstanding overall but the same also applies to the quality of care
given to the children and young people on respite visits, safeguarding standards,
leadership management of the scheme and general outcomes for youngsters involved.
John Kaiser, Executive Member for Planning and Highways
I have two items I would like to talk about. One is the Social Housing Decency
Programme. As you know about 2 years ago we bought all our council houses that we
thought we owned back from the Government for about £90million. We have now
completed 820 new bathrooms and kitchens so far this year and we are 191 over target. It
is estimated that we will complete another 100 in this financial year, which will mean we
will meet the full target for the Government grant. The important thing, the cost of
improving the quality of our housing stock, that we own, this year alone will be £3.3million,
with a Government grant covering 90% of that. WBC contribution only being 10%; yet

another example of the Council ensuring excellent value for money, improving our housing
stock, meaning quality housing for residents and do you know what, next year we are
going to do even more.
The other item I would just like to touch on is obviously something that touches us all
which is the roads. I mean the Council is set to continue investing with £95.8million in the
Capital Programme this year to support its priorities including schools, roads, housing and
despite financial pressure we can continue to focus on maintaining good quality services.
This includes in this Investment Plan for 2015-2020 five new roads; Arborfield relief road,
North Wokingham distributor road, South Wokingham distributor road, Shinfield eastern
relief road and coming along Winnersh relief road. Wokingham Borough has among the
highest ratio of car ownership in the country. Would you believe it only 9% of our residents
do not have a car in their family. Not only that but the Borough is also one of the highest
nationally for having more than one car. Wokingham Borough’s road network has this
unique problem in serving this high level of car ownership, which means it is trickier to
maintain and upgrade without causing problems and congestion. The A329 is a major
route through the Borough and each day it sees 40,000 traffic movements both ways.
Winnersh Crossroads sees 24,000 traffic movements and Showcase Cinema, over
50,000. Investment in the Borough’s highways and infrastructure and maintenance
between 2015 and 2018 will, in addition to the major roads I have mentioned, include a
major programme to replace all the Borough’s worn out street lights; for you Tom.
Additional footbridges over the Waterloo railway line and £8million replacement for the
railway bridge on the A321 Finchampstead Road in addition to the extension of Nine Mile
Ride. There will also be additions which will be upgrades of junctions and new junctions
where they are required. There is also planned investment in future and current cycle
networks as part of the development of Greenways, a network of quiet community and
leisure routes for pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. We will be investing heavily on
measures to keep traffic moving, to negate as much as possible the effect of these works
but they are needed. Whether you are a road user, whether you are a cyclist or you drive
or even ride a horse, we need these roads.
Pauline Jorgensen, Executive Member for Resident Services
I will try and be brief. I am pleased to confirm that we are progressing plans to improve
Woodley Library to meet the increased demand generated by the housing development in
the area. These plans include improvements to the garden area so it can be used for
activities and events, improvements to the entrance to create more space and the creation
of a new meeting room at the rear of the library. These plans are consistent with the
Borough library offer and will be funded through developer contributions and rather bring a
lie to the comment last time that nothing ever gets spent in Woodley.
The drive for digital engagement as an option for our residents continues in Wokingham
Borough. The new waste section is now live on the website and has excellent feedback
from users. The new improved online process for garden waste renewals has proved very
popular with 3,203 payments so far using the new online form, compared to 1,472 at our
payment kiosks or by cheque. We are now getting nine out of ten payments through
electronic means and that means that residents can pay when it is convenient to them
rather than when it is convenient to us. The new website sections for Countryside, Parks
and Transport are being developed and will go live in March with Planning to follow in
April.
Finally to mention something which does not get mentioned very often, the Joint Trading
Standards Service which we run jointly with West Berkshire is a key service protecting our

residents; although quite low profile. It especially protects the vulnerable and elderly and
has been very busy. Cases are as wide ranging as illegal disposal of food products,
animal welfare, endangering of sheep and various cases protecting the public from rouge
traders and counterfeit products. It is a very underpublicised service but it does a really
good job and it is doing a great job for residents at the moment.
Angus Ross, Executive Member for Environment
I will cover the important bits, actually they are all important. It has been a very active and
productive year and I would just want to put on record my thanks to the Officers for their
efforts on many initiatives that we have been working with. Perhaps I could just start on a
very current one, Bulmershe leisure centre, which was a joint investment of over £400,000
with our leisure provider One Life to: refurbish swimming changing rooms and reception
redecorating; bringing upstairs into use shortly as our second ground breaking long term
condition gym; with consultation rooms adjoining; and opening a brand new gym already
with 450 members. I want to thank all those involved including Woodley Town Council for
helping the transfer arrangements and all those who attended the Open Evening last night
when it was clear how well this Council and 1Life had worked together to transform this
facility for the benefit of residents of Woodley and Whitegates. We are continuing
provision across our three pools for free swimming for our youth in holiday time to promote
exercise and learning to swim.
We have worked hard post the floods last year to produce the local Flood Risk
Management Strategy and identify how to reduce chances of flooding from the River
Loddon on the A327; works will be incorporated with the start of the Shinfield East relief
road.
We signed up with the LGA’s Climate Local to promote better efficiency in using energy
and we are working to improve our country parks and finding good ways to make them
financially self-sufficient whilst providing even more opportunities for residents, helped by
success at Dinton of the new children’s play area. Those parts that are being reworked
are due to reopen very soon. Also the increased use of the Dinton Activity Centre and at
California through reopening a very good café there. I could speak much more but I
suspect my two minutes are up.
104. STATEMENTS FROM COMPANY DIRECTORS
Alistair Auty, Non-Executive Director of Wokingham Housing Limited
This is an update from Wokingham Housing Limited. When the Chairman of WHL last
reported it was to notify Council that planning had been obtained for the Eustace and
Fosters’ sites. These are progressing with Eustace moving towards the selection of a
contractor and Fosters going through the detailed design phase. Construction starts at
Eustace in late August and is scheduled to last for 75 weeks and Fosters in November.
We have an additional six applications in planning with others in the pipeline, though
smaller than the two flagship schemes these account for 31 units. Thus by the end of next
year we could have as many 133 units built, under construction or identified. Our existing
MD Robin Fielder will be standing down at the end of May and after a detailed recruitment
process we have his replacement Bill Flood contracted to start on 18 May. Robin has
been an excellent MD and we may be fortunate enough to have him serve as a NonExecutive Director on the Board of our subsidiary Loddon Homes. On that front our
consultant David Williams is guiding the Board through the process of applying for
registered provider status. This is an important phase. If we can achieve this we will have
the ability to potentially secure grant funding for future affordable housing schemes from
the Homes and Communities Agency. I should just point out, on the Fosters front this is

the second extra care facility in Woodley. Finally the Chairman of WHL attended an Audit
Committee meeting earlier this year to discuss matters of governance. All Directors are
committed to keeping regular dialogue with its key shareholders.
Anthony Pollock, Non-Executive Director of Optalis
I am speaking in my capacity as Chairman of Optalis, our social care business. I am
pleased to report that we are ahead of budget for this year by some 38% and that cash
flow is well under control. I am also pleased that we have contributed to our Council
savings for next year and we are contributing £250,000 towards the Commissioner’s
savings targets. We are making significant progress in connection with recruitment of
more staff because we need them in order to be able to expand the business. We are
doing a lot of work with recruitment. Our staff retention is better than similar businesses in
the Borough. On the business development front we have won a contract to provide extra
care housing support in a neighbouring borough and we are also advising a Labour council
somewhere in the north of England on the setting up of a local authority trading company.
So we are using the lessons that we have learnt to generate extra income and we are also
working with the Commissioner of Wokingham Borough Council in connection with other
services that we night assist the Council with. We have been working particularly in the
last few months in developing our partnership working with the Commissioner and his
team and it has been working particularly well and I look forward to that continuing.
105. MEMBER QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited Members to submit questions
to the appropriate Members
105.1 Philip Houldsworth asked the Executive Member for Environment the
following question:
Question
A “pilot” programme was established at Dinton Pastures working with Job Centre Plus and
Pinnacle People to give long term unemployed people a chance to improve their skills and
self-esteem through a volunteering programme.
Can the Executive Member for Environment please give me an update as to how this has
progressed?
Answer
Thank you for the question and the opportunity to explain what this is about. Pinnacle
People delivered two contracts on behalf of Job Centre Plus.
The first was Mandatory Work Related Activity (MWA), which offered a 4 week work
placement for 30 hours a week.
The second contract was Community Work Programme (CWP), which offered a 6 month
work placement for 30 hours.
On the first there have been 534 starts at the projects, around 60% of these starters
sustained work for the 4 week period.
On the second there have been 283 starts which have led to 20 jobs, 4 of which have
sustained beyond 6 months so far.
Operational outcomes for the service in a typical month included:

•
•
•
•

Visiting and litter picking 10 countryside service sites
Filling 2 skips with rubbish
575 volunteer days
Other tasks included litter picking, painting, cutting back vegetation, stocking wood
and kindling for the café, ditch clearance, leaf raking and playground maintenance.

The partnership programme has supported the long term unemployed gain workplace
skills, in some cases sustainable jobs and in addition have made a significant
improvement to the local environment. A downturn in client referrals means that the
programme ended on 8 March this year.
I would like therefore to take this opportunity to thank Pinnacle People for their work to
support long term unemployed people in our community and the productive partnership
working with the Borough Council. I would also like to thank Council Officers Andy
Nicholls and Lucy Jellis for their hard work in ensuring that the project was a success and
also David Lee for his efforts to establish the programme and the initiatives when this was
first discussed.
We will continue to research ways in which we can continue to help our long term
unemployed and vulnerable people in the Borough and we believe that environmental
enhancement programmes are a positive area to concentrate on.
105.2 Dee Tomlin asked the Executive Member for Resident Services the following
question:
Question
Where in the Capital Plan is the money for the Twyford Community Hub?
Answer
The Twyford Community Hub, as you know, is a project led by a local voluntary group
called the Polehampton Trust.
The Trust owns the Old Polehampton Boys School in the centre of Twyford. It is this
building that the Trust wants to renovate and extend to become a community hub.
Within the Community Hub, the Polehampton Trust has indicated that they could provide
an alternative location for the Wokingham Borough Council Library within Twyford. They
have also designed space for the History Society, the Theatre Club and possibly the Town
Council as well.
This option is being considered as part of the Council’s Asset Review Programme, that
Mark mentioned recently, which includes the potential utilisation of capital and revenue
resources that could be generated from maximising the value of the current library site
should the library services be relocated within the Community Hub.
Presently there are no resources allocated within the Council’s Capital Plan but there is
approximately £20,000 of S106 resources allocated for Library Services in Twyford.
Supplementary Question
Do you think you are misleading residents in this particular case about progressing the
project when there is actually no money in the Budget; or is this just a case of smoke and
mirrors?

Supplementary Answer
We are certainly not misleading the public. We have been consistent in the discussions
with various stakeholders in the group, that this is a joint project. The Borough Council
have been very supportive in terms of planning and in terms of supporting the mechanism
around the meetings. We need to get to a joint agreement about the library and the
Polehampton site as a whole. We have been consistent with them throughout that this a
joint venture. It is not just a replacement of the library and as I have said before the
funding is partially covered by the Council’s Asset Review Programme and the potential
reuse of the library site.
105.3 Kay Gilder asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question
For several years residents of South Lake have had to live with the stink coming from the
lake itself and we have raised this repeatedly. In the current year’s budget there is £10,000
allocated for clearing vegetation but it hasn’t been spent and is being carried forward to
next year. With warmer days coming, when is this Council going to take action and sort out
the South Lake stink?
Answer
Thank you Kay for raising this point again. In part I did cover this matter in the public
question earlier. Although two visits from the Environmental Health Service observed no
notable issues of odour from the lake, the Council does recognise that this is a concern for
local residents. After much investigation and discussions with local residents and yourself
the proposal is: first, all debris and stagnant vegetation is cleared; following this a boom is
to be installed across the lake which will prevent leaves migrating to that corner of the lake
preventing build-up of leaf sediment. Subsequently a maintenance regime will include an
annual chalk treatment that will also break down any future deposits. It is hoped that this
will eradicate the issue but the area will be carefully monitored and future maintenance
may be adjusted to meet the needs of the residents and you. This is being funded from
revenue budgets. Health and safety works relating to the recent report and the
recommendations by the Supervising Engineer include vegetation clearance and tree
works and an element of this funding may be carried forward into the new financial year.
Supplementary Question
Fourteen years ago this lake was maintained regularly by just one man and there was no
smell. It has got worse every year since then. Why has not enough money been allocated
for maintenance and why do my residents have to endure this revolting smell every year in
this otherwise beautiful area? We have been told about the chalk. Will this actually get rid
of the smell or will it just take the first layer off and make the lake more alkaline and less
acidic which is actually making the lake less environmentally friendly for the wildlife.
Supplementary Answer
I think I have answered most of the points to that already. All I will say about the treatment
is that we have had expert advice and we believe that this has a fair chance of being
successful, but as I said again we will be monitoring it and I do hope that what we do will
have a continuing ability to maintain this at levels that we can afford.
105.4 Beth Rowland asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:

Question
In the 2015/16 Medium Term Financial Plan the funding for either a rebuild or
refurbishment of Bulmershe Leisure Centre has been deferred for 2 years until 2017/18.
Why?
Answer
I think in part you saw the answer to this question last night but you will of course
understand that the capital scheme in the MTFP beyond the budget agreed at Council is
speculative in nature and represents our best understanding of possible future
requirements. The deferral of the funding marker for the Bulmershe Leisure Centre within
that is a means of ensuring clarity regarding our approach to the continued provision of
leisure facilities in Woodley. The provisional Capital Programme had originally set funding
aside at £7m in 2016/7 and £5.7m in 2017/8; based upon a full rebuild or refurbishment of
the Centre. These timings were originally determined prior to this Council’s assumption of
the lease and the operational management being transferred to 1Life, and were thus not
based upon a full assessment of the sustainability of facilities at Bulmershe nor the
economics of their enhancement in the short-term.
There is not as yet a consensus of the best options for improving Bulmershe – these will
be determined once we have begun the appropriate high impact consultation that such
proposals warrant. To be clear there is no preferred model at this time - options must be
widely considered, including within the context of the renewal of the wider leisure contract.
We remain completely committed to the provision of high quality accessible swimming and
sporting facilities at Bulmershe and support for the needs of Bulmershe School and the
recent works which I referred to earlier and what you saw last night will ensure that we
sustain the existing facilities over the next three years during which the consultations on
options and the parallel process of re-procuring the leisure contract will be undertaken.
Supplementary Question
The report on the alternatives for Bulmershe Leisure Centre has been around for two
years now, if not longer. I can see no reason why Woodley should not have the same
quality facilities as the remainder of the Borough. Again Woodley is short changed.
Supplementary Answer
It was you I saw last night was it not? The transformation that we have provided there and
the investment that we and 1Life have put into that facility, which I believe is now better
than many of the other facilities in the Borough, that money has been invested for the
benefit of Woodley. It will be put to good use. It will not be thrown away in the short term
whilst we consider what is best for that centre for the people of Woodley.
105.5 Tim Holton asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
Park and ride is a way of reducing traffic. At the moment our park and ride sites are
looking to be single destination. Is the Council looking at the possibility of adding multi
destination buses which could serve other locations such as the new town centres and
stations to elevate car parking problems?
Answer

As you know we are building two Park and Rides at the moment and there is a third one
on the cards. In the past our Park and Rides would always have been single destination
but it is my plan as part of the Parking Strategy, not only for the Borough, but for the town
centre, to look at the possibility of working with bus companies and having multi
destinations which would take in, as I say, Wokingham town centre. Why should we be
sending everyone to Bracknell and Reading? Also it will help stations such as Twyford
where CrossRail will be coming in a few years’ time and they already have a parking
problem so yes it is something we will be seriously looking at.
105.6 Tom McCann asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
Information on the WBC website about S106 developer contributions has not been kept up
to date and one of the reports is missing, this is not very open and transparent of the
Council.
However going by what has now appeared on the website, the February 2015 report of
developer contributions by parish shows £5.3M of S106 contributions received or owed to
WBC for Woodley, how much of this has been identified in the capital program for the next
3 years?
Answer
Thank you Tom for giving me the opportunity to explain how much we are spending in
Woodley. I do apologise on behalf of the Officers and myself regarding the S106
information not being updated on the website. I get it in hard copy as does Prue every
month so there is no secret.
Of the £5.3m, the following has been identified in the capital programme.
Active Projects on 14/15 Capital Programme:
- Environment ** - £102k
- Community / Leisure - £172k
- Libraries - £7k
- Education - £173k
**Environment Includes. Transport, Cycleways, Crossings, Public Rights of Way, Road
Safety
Pending Projects on 15/16 onwards in the Capital Programme:
- Environment - £996k
- Community / Leisure - £349k
- Education - £2.8m
There is stuff which is at Feasibility project stage, but it always happens, as Angus pointed
out earlier, things do tend to change but they are at the feasibility change stage at the
moment and they are not projects on the Capital Programme and they are:
- Environment - £128
- Community / Leisure *** - £367k
- Libraries - £64k
- Total £0.6m

*** Community / Leisure Inc. Woodley Town Centre, Public Toilets, Civic Space, Play
Areas
The money which has been recently received, which is awaiting allocation is £200,000.
Supplementary Question
Could you just tell me first what that actually totals up to? That would be very handy. I
assume you have got that as a bottom number.
My supplementary question is, of that amount money (as it is extremely difficult for local
people to understand) where and when this money is being allocated when the Council
allocates its Capital programme and changes it at a whim. As an example the Bulmershe
has been bounced for 2 years. I hope this Council undertakes to spend this money in time
and in calendar year and to budget.
Supplementary Answer
It may surprise you that my colleague there will not let me change anything at a whim.
The last time I was asked I remember I had somebody ask about the Winnersh relief road.
They asked where the money was for it and I explained very clearly the Winnersh relief
road money, because it would change priorities and it was coming forward sooner, would
appear on the Capital Programme. Now with regards to you finding out, this information is
all available. It is not hidden anywhere. Prue gets this information; she can ask for it, she
is on SCiWG. There is no reason why you cannot see this information. If you feel that
there is anything which is underhand or you do not think represents value for money I
would suggest that you ask for the information.
I have asked my colleague to add it up for me and it actually comes to £5.3million. The
other thing I would say while I am here is that we did not reroute the bus but I am quite
prepared to work with you, Beth and Reading Transport to try to get the route changed if
that is what you require.
105.7 Bob Pitts asked the Executive Member for Resident Services the following
question:
Question
I am frequently asked what is happening about the Community Hub/Library in Twyford. I
know that this is not my Ward but it does affect my residents. Could you please provide me
with an update on progress so far and an estimated date when something might happen?
Answer
I will not repeat what I just said about the funding to Dee. Since December, well since the
last meeting in December, we have had two meetings with the interested parties which are
Twyford and Charvil Town Councils; the Twyford Village Partnership; the Theatre
Company; the Polehampton Trust themselves; and the History Society. Discussions also
continue with the Police about their interest in jumping into the Hub. Since Christmas we
have agreed the minimum spec with the architect. There has been a detailed site survey
which was jointly funded by all the interested parties which shows a sign of their
commitment and that enabled the architect to tweak the plans, including moving the
building slightly because we discovered that the railway line was not quite where we
thought it was. It would have been a bit unfortunate otherwise. The architect has
redesigned the building as a result and we discussed it at the last meeting and have
agreed the redesign. Conversations are ongoing with the Listed Building Officers because

obviously this would be an adjustment to a listed building in the Polehampton building
itself. The architect is doing further refining of plans as a result of those conversations and
we hope to submit for planning application shortly.
Separately somebody who is connected to the Polehampton Trust has made a nice model
of the building and we are hoping to provide that to local groups in the area so the local
residents can get a better idea of what is being planned.
Supplementary Question
It is just a point of clarification because I know when you answered Councillor Tomlin you
mentioned something about the assets. Is any of that going to be used to assist the
funding of the Community Hub Library?
Supplementary Answer
Just to be clear, we are looking at the whole site and if we do move the library into the
Library Hub building that will free other land on the site so we are looking at what we can
do with that land to generate revenue to actually enhance the money available to support
the Community Hub, but in the end it will be a mixture of fundraising from the various
different bodies, local funding and also contributions from the Borough so it is a joint
project. At the end of that I would expect that we should have some form of joint
governance over the whole thing so that the building is owned and operated by local
residents and that they have a real engagement in the whole Hub and are interested in
keeping it going.
105.8 Chris Bowring asked the Executive Member for Resident Services the
following question:
Question
I have found the introduction of modern.gov into the Council's website a great help
especially when searching previous council agendas and minutes for relevant information.
Would the Executive Member for Resident Services please indicate what future
enhancements we can expect using this new software?
Answer
I think I am becoming the new Keith Baker, being asked all the questions. The new
software has already made it easier for members of the public to access Council
information and more easily become involved in local democracy through a clearer
website, better search and automatic notification of specific items registered as an interest.
It has also introduced new levels of transparency about attendance at meetings, details
about Councillors including the ability to add additional information such as timing of
surgeries and social media contact information. I must make a note before everyone dives
into attendance at meetings items, that is only since Modern Gov has started so do not
assume that because your Councillor has no attendance it means they have not attended
anything. It has only been updated actually in the last couple of weeks. We are not going
to retrofit all the old agendas and meetings and stuff onto the site but it will track
attendance going forwards.
It is important to the Council that residents got the first set of improved services. In the
coming months the Council will use the system to deliver improvements within the
organisation including:










Substantial reductions in the volumes of printed paper used at meetings.
Improved information security because of less paper
Easy access to calendars. You can already see the calendar on the website so you
can see when the council meetings are.
Key information such as the constitution and year book which will improve the
efficiency of processes such as setting up meetings.
More efficient processes of administration for essential Councillor items.
Automated reminders and tasks to ensure maximum attendance at meetings and
attention to key tasks.
Proper workflow so things can get approved properly.
Less money spent on postage and document delivery.

Future enhancements include:
 Incorporation of the Council’s e-petition scheme into modern.gov.
 A workflow process which should speed up the passage of formal reports to Council
and Committees.
 In association with the Council’s elections software inclusion of election results on
Councillors’ webpages.
106.

MINUTES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND WARD MATTERS

106.1 David Lee asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
I read with interest today in the Wokingham News about how wonderful our housing is,
and I would just like to ask I think Councillor Kaiser, it says here Wokingham Council spent
£96million buying back its housing stock so it could collect all the rents and reinvest the
money in social housing. Can you tell me how well that has worked Councillor Kaiser, and
I suppose on behalf of my colleague over here have we spent any in the houses in
Woodley?
Answer
Well I think David you will know being involved with Wokingham Housing in the past, that
we have the opportunity to refurbish one of our less salubrious buildings which is now
called Phoenix rather than Eustace Crescent that has allowed us to do that. That will
provide 72 living accommodations and we are doing Fosters as well and we also have a
programme that we would never have been able to do in the past, where we have been
looking at some of our older, less desirable social housing where we will be looking to
refurbish that across the Borough. thank you.
106.2 Kay Gilder asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
Thank you Councillor Kaiser for your comments because my thing is my residents in South
Lake feel that they have been disenfranchised by the recent withdrawal of the Number 19
bus; their only direct route to both the Royal Berkshire Hospital and GP Surgeries. One of
my residents this week informed me that it had cost her £40 in one week to go to the
doctor and to go to the hospital which is an incredible amount for pensioners. The elderly,
less mobile residents have to drive or get someone else to drive them for essential medical
appointments and the young mothers have to either walk or get someone else to drive

them. When will this service be restored and when will South Lake residents be treated
fairly?
Answer
I think I answered that earlier. We did not change the bus route, Reading Buses did but I
would be quite happy to work with you to consult Reading Buses to see whether or not
they would reinstall that route.
106.3 Beth Rowland asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question
I drove down one of the main roads in Lower Earley today on my way home and would like
to congratulate Councillor Kaiser on the lovely road surface that it will be when it is
finished. However, when I got home to Fairwater Drive that was a different world entirely.
There were signs all along Fairwater Drive indicating that the length of the road will be
repaired or should have already been repaired by now. Woodley Town Council had a
report from Reading Buses to say that Fairwater Drive is the worst road to drive on in
Woodley. We have now discovered that only about 10% of the road will be repaired from
the roundabout by Bulmershe Leisure Centre to the top of Antrim Road. Once again the
residents of South Lake and in particular one of my residents who rides a motorbike up
there and puts his life in danger every day, would like the whole of Fairwater Drive to be
repaired. When is it going to be done and residents of South Lake treated fairly?
Answer
It may surprise everybody in the Chamber but I do not wake up in the morning and think I
will not do that road. I mean we want to do as many of the roads that we possibly can but
we have an issue, two issues first of all. The first is we are the lowest funded authority in
the country. The other issue, as I said earlier on, Wokingham Borough road network’s
unique problem is serving the high level of car ownership. It means it is trickier to
maintain. Nobody is going to thank me for resurfacing roads when we are doing major
work on places like Showcase Cinema where the whole traffic will grind to a halt. We have
to do it in phases. Unfortunately as it we do it, it will appear that it is going on forever
because as we finish one phase we will do another; but unfortunately that is the situation
we are in.
106.4 Dee Tomlin asked the Executive Member for Environment the following
question:
Question
Can you guarantee that the grass in Twyford will be cut and kept at a reasonable length
this year so that small children and small animals do not get lost? It was an absolute
disgrace last year.
Answer
As we have reported and as scrutinised by the Overview and Scrutiny the grass cutting
regime has been reviewed and will be prioritised. What I cannot do is guarantee the
weather and as to whether they can get on to cut it. But I can assure everyone that there
will be a more selective scheme this year for cutting the grass. Also we will be looking at
areas where we can allow the grass to grow and wildflower meadows for the
attractiveness that they will provide.

106.5 Abdul Loyes asked the Executive Member for Economic Development and
Finance the following question:
Question
At the beginning of 2014 Wokingham Borough Council launched two initiatives to help
local unemployed people realise their potential and take control of their lives. The Strive
Programme was run in partnership with the local housing association who share the cost
and help with promotion and provide intensive support to disadvantaged people enabling
them to use their skill and passion to start their own business. Can the Executive Member
for Economic Development and Finance please give me an update?
Answer
Yes I can. This programme is running and has provided some real success stories. It has
been a good example of cross-Council working. The Strive Programme has also provided
opportunities for some of our former looked after children to start their own businesses. In
2014 a total of 15 residents graduated from the Strive 2014 course. Since then 10 have
managed to launch their own businesses and have orders or have already provided
services to their customers. The Strive Programme is run by a social enterprise called
Enterprise Q who deliver an 11-week course offering a unique programme of dynamic,
practical and interactive learning. Local businesses have supported the programme
through mentoring and the graduates have also formed a self-help group using social
media.
The examples of some of these businesses which have been started are: childcare
business; an interior design and soft furnishing business; a commercial cleaning company;
a party planning and on-line video messaging business aimed at children; and a start-up
street food business. All these have been successful. They have obtained new customers
and have been making sales.
In 2015 the 12-week course for Strive began on 7 January and overall 60 local residents
expressed an interest in the programme; 25 attended our taster session and there are now
28 residents enrolled on the course. There are currently five residents on the waiting list
and 40 residents have expressed an interest in attending an additional course.
In summary this is a successful programme contributing to the development of new
businesses but also to individual personal developments and I am pleased that we support
it.
106.6 Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey asked the Executive Member for Environment the
following question:
Question
The litter bins in Winnersh, especially in Winnersh Meadows, are not being emptied on a
regular basis. They seem to be emptied mainly when I go and talk to the people at the
front desk or my residents call Wokingham Direct to get them emptied. Isn’t there a
regular schedule of them being emptied or are they hit by grass as is happening in
Twyford at the moment?
Answer
The collection is not affected by the rain. It is a regular programme but I will take up your
particular point and ask the Officers concerned to contact you.

106.7 Prue Bray asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
My question is about Winnersh Crossroads one of the busiest junctions in the Borough
which has very high pedestrian traffic. On 20 February a resident reported to the Council
that there had been an accident which had resulted in a set of pedestrian lights being
demolished. It took over a week and a reminder before someone came and picked up the
bits from the pavement and we are now a month on and nothing else has happened. I
have a lovely picture of it here which I will give to you John in a minute. There is no
indication of when the lights are going to be functioning again. Please can you take some
action to get them repaired and please let all Winnersh Councillors know when it is going
to happen and why it has taken so long?
Answer
Yes and I am a bit disappointed I must admit. I would say I was not aware of that and I will
take that up. Travelling through the Winnersh Crossroads I am now finding it a lot easier
and am finding that it takes a lot less time. I think possibly we have now found a situation
where the phasing of the lights is correct.
106.8 Tim Holton asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
I have recently delivered a survey to every household in Hawkedon Ward. The response
has been very positive and appreciative of what the Conservative Councillors have
actually achieved in the Ward. Following on from this will you commit tonight that in the
very near future you will meet with me to discuss the possibility of resurfacing residential
roads in Lower Earley and particularly in my ward of Hawkedon?
Answer
The simple answer to that is yes I will but I am sure I will get a request from every other
Member. I am currently at the moment looking at the schedule of work for this year and
hopefully I might have some good news when I come back to the next meeting.
106.9 Tom McCann asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:
Question
My question is why is this Council even considering the development of a so-called “My
Journey” app at the cost of around £100k for an app that no one wants and no one will
use. Is this yet another example of this Council wasting money?
Answer
It is a bit of a red herring because the app is not just an app it is part of the “My Journey”
product that the Officers have actually built which will actually help us to extract more
money out of developers. But you are right there was a problem because it had not gone
through our IT people and I have insisted it goes through them. It has gone back to them
and they are looking at it now and I will be bringing a paper forward in the not too distant
future which actually details how “My Journey” works and what it does. It is worth many
millions of pounds to us.
106.10
Paul Swaddle asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways
following question:
Question

One of my residents wanted to get to a hospital the other day and he had a lot of journeys
to do and if he had used either a bus service or used something else it would have cost
him £40 a week. He actually used the Readibus and was able to get there easily. I would
just like to confirm that this service is available in Woodley?
Answer
Yes I believe it is.
107. MOTION 365 SUBMITTED BY NORMAN JORGENSEN
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by Norman Jorgensen
and seconded by John Kaiser.
‘This Council supports the campaign from our members of Parliament, spearheaded by
John Redwood, to urge the Highways Agency to provide noise mitigation measures when
the M4 becomes a managed motorway between junctions 3 and 12. This especially
affects our residents in North Wokingham, Emmbrook, Hurst, Winnersh, Earley and
Shinfield.’
After some discussion of the Motion, Norman Jorgensen in line with Rule 4.2.13.8,
proposed that the Motion be altered as follows:
‘This Council supports the campaign from our members of Parliament, spearheaded by
John Redwood, to urge the Highways Agency to provide noise mitigation measures when
the M4 becomes a managed motorway between junctions 3 and 12. This especially
affects the majority of residents in the Borough.’
Upon being put to the meeting, the alteration to the Motion was accepted.
At this point in the meeting 9.45pm, an in accordance with Rule 4.2.13.11g) Paul Swaddle
proposed that time limit for speeches on this motion be extended for 15 minutes in order to
enable the debate on the Motion to continue. This was seconded by Guy Grandison.
Upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried.
It was proposed by Lindsay Ferris and seconded by Prue Bray that the Motion be
amended as follows:
‘This Council supports the campaign from our members of Parliament, spearheaded by
John Redwood and Clive Jones, Liberal Democrat Parliamentary Candidate for
Wokingham, to urge the Highways Agency to provide noise mitigation measures when the
M4 becomes a managed motorway between junctions 3 and 12. This especially affects
the majority of residents in the Borough.’
Following debate of the amendment, upon being put to the meeting, the amendment to the
Motion was declared by the Mayor to be lost.
Following considerable discussion, it was proposed by Paul Swaddle and seconded by
Keith Baker that the Motion be amended as follows:
‘This Council supports the campaign from our members of Parliament, spearheaded by
John Redwood and residents, to urge the Highways Agency to provide noise mitigation

measures when the M4 becomes a managed motorway between junctions 3 and 12. This
especially affects the majority of residents in the Borough.’
The amendment to the Motion was accepted by the proposer of the original Motion.
Following debate, upon being put to the meeting, the amended Motion was declared by
the Mayor to be carried.
RESOLVED This Council supports the campaign from our members of Parliament,
spearheaded by John Redwood and residents, to urge the Highways Agency to provide
noise mitigation measures when the M4 becomes a managed motorway between junctions
3 and 12. This especially affects the majority of residents in the Borough.
108. CONTINUATION OF THE MEETING
At this point in the meeting 10.00pm, in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.8, Council
considered a Motion to continue the meeting beyond 10.00pm for a maximum of 30
minutes to enable further business on the Agenda to be transacted. This was proposed by
Prue Bray and seconded by Lindsay Ferris.
Upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried.
109. MOTION 366 SUBMITTED BY PHILIP MIRFIN
The Council considered the following Notice of Motion submitted by Philip Mirfin and
seconded by Mark Ashwell.
‘This Council fully supports the regeneration of Wokingham town centre on the basis that it
continues to satisfy the 5 key principles:






To provide a thriving town centre
To provide an eighteen hour economy
To treat streets as places for pedestrian and cyclists
To provide active and accessible public spaces
To enhance the quality and heritage of the town centre.

This will be achieved by:







Continuing to put the local resident right at the heart of the regeneration process
with an open and honest exchange that involves them in shaping how their town
grows in the coming years
Continuing to ensure that residents are kept up to date on what is happening and
how it effects them
Continuing to ensure that the regeneration remains viable and that it becomes
something which benefits the community both financially and, more importantly, by
delivering the facilities an ever growing and changing population needs
Creating a destination which offers something different from neighbouring towns
and focusses on delivering a local market town experience for local people
Delivering a better mix and variety of retail offer within the town so it becomes a
destination people want to come to rather than having to go elsewhere or
compromise
Ensuring that the surplus income from this development is used to benefit the whole
Borough and can be reinvested in delivering the things local people need on an
ongoing basis




Ensuring the development responds to and integrates into the existing fabric of the
town and remains flexible enough to continue to adapt to the ever changing needs
of a local high street
Continuing to ensure that whatever is built is done so to the highest standards and
to the highest quality and that it will stand the tests of time’

It was proposed by Prue Bray and seconded by Lindsay Ferris that the Motion be
amended as follows:
‘This Council fully supports the regeneration of Wokingham town centre on the basis that it
continues to satisfy the 5 key principles:






To provide a thriving town centre
To provide an eighteen hour economy
To treat streets as places for pedestrian and cyclists
To provide active and accessible public spaces
To enhance the quality and heritage of the town centre.

This will be achieved by:













Continuing to put the local resident right at the heart of the regeneration process
with an open and honest exchange that involves them in shaping how their town
grows in the coming years
Continuing to ensure that residents are kept up to date on what is happening and
how it effects them
Continuing to ensure that the regeneration remains financially and economically
viable and that it becomes something which benefits the community both financially
and, more importantly, by delivering the facilities an ever growing and changing
population needs
Creating a destination which offers something different from neighbouring towns
and focusses on delivering a local market town experience for local people
Delivering a better mix and variety of retail offer within the town so it becomes a
destination people want to come to rather than having to go elsewhere or
compromise
Ensuring that the surplus income from this development is used to benefit the whole
Borough and can be reinvested in delivering the things local people need on an
ongoing basis
Ensuring the development responds to and integrates into the existing fabric of the
town and remains flexible enough to continue to adapt to the ever changing needs
of a local high street
Continuing to ensure that whatever is built is done so to the highest standards and
to the highest quality and that it will stand the tests of time
Maintaining all the green area of Elms Field as a focal point for future
generations
Implementing development in a phased manner in order to manage and
minimise the impact and disruption on town centre businesses and residents
caused by many years of development
Minimising the financial risk.

110. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING
At this point, 10.15pm, the meeting adjourned for a short period in order for discussion of
the proposed amendment as requested by the Mayor.
111. RECOMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING
At 10.23pm the meeting recommenced.
112. CONTINUATION OF MEETING
At this point in the meeting 10.25pm, in accordance with Procedure Rule 4.2.8, Council
considered a Motion to continue the meeting beyond 10.30pm for a maximum of 30
minutes to enable further business on the Agenda to be transacted. This was proposed by
Prue Bray and seconded by Tom McCann.
Upon being put to the meeting, the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be lost.
113. NOTICE OF MOTION 366 CONTINUED
Following debate, upon being put to the meeting, the amendment to the Motion was
declared by the Mayor to be lost.
Upon being put to the meeting the Motion was declared by the Mayor to be carried.
RESOLVED That this Council fully supports the regeneration of Wokingham town centre
on the basis that it continues to satisfy the 5 key principles:






To provide a thriving town centre
To provide an eighteen hour economy
To treat streets as places for pedestrian and cyclists
To provide active and accessible public spaces
To enhance the quality and heritage of the town centre.

This will be achieved by:








Continuing to put the local resident right at the heart of the regeneration process
with an open and honest exchange that involves them in shaping how their town
grows in the coming years
Continuing to ensure that residents are kept up to date on what is happening and
how it effects them
Continuing to ensure that the regeneration remains viable and that it becomes
something which benefits the community both financially and, more importantly, by
delivering the facilities an ever growing and changing population needs
Creating a destination which offers something different from neighbouring towns
and focusses on delivering a local market town experience for local people
Delivering a better mix and variety of retail offer within the town so it becomes a
destination people want to come to rather than having to go elsewhere or
compromise
Ensuring that the surplus income from this development is used to benefit the whole
Borough and can be reinvested in delivering the things local people need on an
ongoing basis
Ensuring the development responds to and integrates into the existing fabric of the
town and remains flexible enough to continue to adapt to the ever changing needs
of a local high street



Continuing to ensure that whatever is built is done so to the highest standards and
to the highest quality and that it will stand the tests of time.

Due to time constraints Motion 367 was not considered and in accordance with Rule
4.2.8.1 was deemed to have fallen.

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF
THE COUNCIL
HELD ON 21 MAY 2015 FROM 7.30 PM TO 8.35 PM
Members Present
Councillors: UllaKarin Clark (Mayor), Parry Batth (Deputy Mayor), Alistair Auty,
Keith Baker, Laura Blumenthal, Chris Bowring, Prue Bray, David Chopping, Gary Cowan,
Lindsay Ferris, Michael Firmager, Mike Gore, Guy Grandison, Kate Haines, Mike Haines,
Charlotte Haitham Taylor, Pauline Helliar-Symons, Philip Houldsworth, Dianne King,
John Jarvis, Nicky Jerrome, Norman Jorgensen, Pauline Jorgensen, John Kaiser,
David Lee, Abdul Loyes, Tom McCann, Julian McGhee-Sumner, Ken Miall, Philip Mirfin,
Stuart Munro, Ian Pittock, Bob Pitts, Barrie Patman, Anthony Pollock, Malcolm Richards,
Angus Ross, Beth Rowland, Rachelle Shepherd-DuBey, David Sleight, Chris Smith,
Wayne Smith, Alison Swaddle, Paul Swaddle, Simon Weeks, Bob Wyatt and
Shahid Younis
1.
ELECTION OF MAYOR FOR 2015/16
UllaKarin Clark, the current Mayor made a speech to the Council during which she
welcomed Laura Blumenthal and John Jarvis as newly elected Members.
The Mayor explained that it had been a great honour for her and her family to have served
as the Mayor for the previous two years and that throughout her second year she had
been very ably supported by Parry Batth as Deputy Mayor. She expressed her gratitude
for the advice and support she had received during this time from Andy Couldrick the Chief
Executive,
Anne-Marie Bonwick, Civic Communications Officer, Anne Hunter, Democratic Services
Manager and the Democratic Services Team. The Mayor also paid tribute to her husband
Joseph Clark for his support.
The Mayor explained she had thoroughly enjoyed her representational duties having
undertaken some 390 engagements and was particularly pleased to have been able to
contribute to the networking project between local charities and businesses through her
speed dating event which had offered charities better ways of improving their cost
effectiveness and general expertise through partnerships with local business. This was
within the context of the Council’s restricted ability to support charities because of national
fiscal limits.
In conclusion, the Mayor paid tribute to the residents of the Borough and the many local
businesses that had supported her Mayoral charities during her term of office. In
2013/2014 this had been Building for the Future, an organisation that supported disabled
children had been her charity. In 2014/2015 in association with More Arts, teenagers with
creative talents had been supported, including through scholarships. The Mayor
commented that she was delighted to report that £11,868 had been raised for her charity
during the previous municipal year.
The Mayor called for nominations for the office of Mayor for the 2015/16 Municipal Year.
It was proposed by UllaKarin Clark and seconded by Keith Baker that Parry Batth be
elected as Mayor for the 2015/16 Municipal Year.
It was unanimously agreed that Parry Batth should be elected as Mayor for the 2015/16
Municipal Year.

RESOLVED: That Parry Baath be elected as Mayor for the 2015/16 Municipal Year.
Parry Batth made the statutory acceptance of office pursuant to Section 83 of the Local
Government Act 1972.
Parry Batth thanked the Council for electing him as Mayor which he regarded as a great
honour. He paid tribute to UllaKarin Clark for her support and guidance during his term of
office as Deputy Mayor. He had undertaken some 37 mayoral engagements and chaired
two full Council meetings. This had been a learning experience, particularly chairing of
Council for the first time, but thanked the Council and Officers for their support as well as
his wife and consort Surinder.
The Mayor paid tribute to the support he had received as Deputy Mayor from friends and
family within the Sikh community. He commented that he had been born in the Punjab,
known as the being the bread basket of India and had grown up within a humble farming
family. The Mayor stated that he felt particularly honoured, humbled and privileged to be
the Mayor of the Wokingham Borough that also had deep routed farming links. He
commented he would endeavour to serve with pride and humbleness to act as an
ambassador for the Council and prompt the Council’s value of the Borough being a great
place to live and do business.
The Mayor commented that his chosen Mayoral charity for the municipal year would be
ARC in light of the importance of the emotional health and wellbeing of the Borough’s
children, which had been identified as a priority by the Children’s Strategic Partnership and
the Health and Wellbeing Board. ARC provided counselling and support to young people
and parents across the Borough.
2.
APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY MAYOR FOR 2015/2016
The Mayor called for nominations for the office of Deputy Mayor for the 2015/16 Municipal
Year.
It was proposed by UllaKarin Clark and seconded by Lindsay Ferris that Bob Pitts be
appointed as Deputy Mayor for the 2015/16 municipal year.
RESOLVED: That Bob Pitts be elected as Deputy Mayor for the 2015/16 Municipal Year.
Bob Pitts made the statutory acceptance of office pursuant to Section 83 of the Local
Government Act 1972.
Bob Pitts thanked the Council for appointing him and commented that he was honoured to
take the office of Deputy Mayor and would do his best to uphold the values of the Council.
3.
MINUTES
It was noted that unfortunately, the minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 19 March
2015 had been omitted from the Agenda and the previously agreed minutes from February
included in error. The approval of the minutes was therefore deferred to the next meeting.
4.
APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were submitted from Mark Ashwell, John Halsall, Tim Holton, Nick
Ray, Chris Singleton, Bill Soane and Rob Stanton.

5.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.
6.
PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited members of the public to
submit questions to the appropriate Members.
6.1

Narendra Bahulekar had asked the Executive Member for Children's Services
the following question:

Question
This year has seen a substantial increase in the demand for entry level infant school
places in Earley, particularly in the middle of Maiden Erlegh. We represent parents who
live in the small triangle between Aldryngton, Loddon and Hawkedon Schools, all of which
are within a few minutes’ walk and whose children were unable to secure a school place at
our catchment or preferred schools. You identified the requirement for an increase and
have extended Hawkedon School to meet part of that perceived need. Due to high levels
of demand for good education for our children, and the effect this is having on local
demographics, more places are required than first anticipated. Numbers are unclear but
we understand that virtually another form of entry may be required. What action can you
take to alleviate our concerns, as parents, and what assurances can we have that suitable
places will be found for us within reasonable walking distance of our homes?
Answer
Historically school place planning in particular for primary schools was completed on an
annual cycle. This led to an over reliance on bulge classes and responses to initial offers
to parents. This led to a less sustainable and planned school estate and various drains on
the Dedicated Schools Grant.
Our Primary Strategy 2013-2016 set a more strategic approach and helped successfully
resolve school place issues in identified priority areas of the Borough. Our Primary
Strategy was due to be refreshed for this Autumn. We are pleased to report that we are
ahead of schedule in developing our refreshed strategy
Subject to the ongoing work around the refresh I anticipate that additional capacity will be
required to meet local demand for places in September 2016. However, we expect fewer
children in the 2017 Reception year across the Borough because of a fall (both local and
national) in the number of children born in the 2012/13 academic year. The refresh will
therefore consider the case for a permanent school expansion in light of this change and
other evidence. Officers will work with local schools, members and the community to
develop the best way to address these issues.
Part of the challenge (then and now) relates to the popularity of Earley schools, particularly
with Reading as opposed to Wokingham residents. Whiteknights and Earley St Peters are
relatively lacking in popularity with Wokingham residents (26 and 30 first preferences
respectively from WBC parents when both can take 60 and 70 school children in
reception). If not chosen these school places are then offered to children living in Reading
Borough, where parents had expressed a preference for these schools. This has meant
Earley places were not available for children living in Earley. If we could encourage Earley
parents to consider these two schools more, this would have made an impact this year and
potentially many fewer diverts.

For this years admissions; approximately 29 children from across Earley have been
offered places at schools in adjoining areas. This number will though change between now
and September, when the new academic year starts, as waiting lists clear and individual
family circumstances change. We have had experience of this with schools in Wokingham
when we had this situation a couple of years back, this does genuinely happen. Offers
have been made to well resourced schools for those parents, and I believe you are one of
them in this situation, offering permanent places in areas that adjoin Earley. Where these
are beyond walking distance we will help parents get their children there. The average
home to school distance (radial distance) to a diverted school is 1.9 miles (ranging from
just over a mile to just over 3 miles).
Senior Officers have met, and will be meeting again any Earley parent who wishes to over
the next few weeks, to ensure we have explored all options. Officers will also continue to
support parents in providing regular updates on waiting lists and supporting travel and
admissions enquiries.
This afternoon I can report that a delegation of Earley Members have also met with
Officers and have resolved to set up a Task and Finish Group to review this matter for this
year and also next year where there is also an increase in numbers before the drop off in
numbers again in birth rate.
Supplementary Question
Given that the Council has access to the Borough data for the number of children claiming
free 15 hours of EYFS childcare, how and why has this data not been utilised to correctly
predict the number of reception school places required within the same area which now
leaves Earley with approximately 30 children without a school place within their own
community?
Supplementary Answer
It is very difficult to triangulate all of the data, but the Council uses lots of different factors
to find out exactly where we think children will be coming into our school places; but it is
not an exact science. We are one of the authorities that lead on this and we are extremely
good at getting this data right. This year has seen a change in what we were expecting.
The Council uses birth data, but we also asked Health Visitors for their data because they
undertake two year old checks.
The Council can also use data such as you have suggested. The problem is that we also
have inward migration and residents selling their homes as well. This varies across the
Borough. So it is not an exact science and it is possible to get changes that have these
different occurrences that are not predicted. I am sorry about that and I am sorry that this
has affected you and your family.
6.2

Clive Jones had asked the Executive Member for Planning and Highways the
following question:

Question
In June 2014 the Liberal Democrat Roads Minister Susan Kramer gave Wokingham
Borough council an extra £728,000 to fix potholes in the Borough. Enough for over 10,000
potholes.
Can you tell me how much of this money has been spent in each ward fixing potholes and
how much remains to be spent?

Answer
I am somewhat surprised you did not use Baroness Kramer of Richmond Park’s proper
title. She must be an exceptional person as she was elevated to the Lords after five years
as a Member of Parliament being beaten by a Conservative on her second standing.
The other issue is that the money was allocated no doubt, after some form of consultation
within the Government and I assume this would have included some Conservative input or
sign off along the way. If was not as if it was her own money, although no doubt she could
have afforded it having been a Vice-President of an American bank before coming a
Liberal Democrat MP and a Baroness when that failed. I believe she also voted against
your policy on an elected second chamber. I do not know why.
All of the money has been spent although a small element of the costs has yet to be
finalised with the contractor.
Central government was anxious to avoid monies being spent on temporary pothole
repairs, instead favouring permanent repairs as the first choice. The programme generally
comprise small patching and larger surfacing works where numerous, localised, smallrepairs or plugging might have been funded in the order of 10,000 potholes, but permanent
repairs were made wherever possible. Where a number of defects existed in a road it has
occasionally resulted in larger-scale patching or resurfacing of sections of road, something
that the revenue budget alone does not always allow for.
The Borough’s highways are not generally defined by Wards but do have a Parish element
in their designation (although of course roads do still cross Parish boundaries).
A list of spends in each parish is as follows:
Parish
Arborfield
Barkham
Charvil
Earley (including a
section of the A3290)
Finchampstead
Hurst
Remenham
Ruscombe
Shinfield
Sonning
Swallowfield
Twyford
Wargrave
Winnersh
Wokingham
Wokingham Without
Woodley
Grand Total

Value (£)
9,951
13,556
6,312
136,638
196,420
2,375
4,5947
2,523
46,058
1,716
60,932
3,545
18,531
16,328
111,650
76,819
20,362
728,313

A web page has been created and is currently being updated. This includes example
photographs of some of the works.
7.
PETITIONS
There were no petitions presented.
8.

REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER - PARLIAMENTARY, BOROUGH AND
PARISH ELECTIONS 7 MAY 2015
The Council considered a report from Andrew Moulton, the Council’s Head of Governance
and Improvement Services in his role as Returning Officer in respect of the Elections held
on 7 May 2015, as set out on Agenda pages 29 to 34.
In proposing the noting of the report, Pauline Jorgensen paid tribute to Andrew Moulton,
Alison Wood the Deputy Returning Officer and the Elections Team for the way in which the
electoral process had been conducted and providing a really good service during the
election period. This was echoed by Prue Bray, the Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group.
RESOLVED: That the Returning Officer’s report be noted.
9.
MAYOR'S OR HEAD OF PAID SERVICE'S ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Mayor informed Members that sadly John Bingham who was one of the Council’s
Independent Persons had passed away on 7 May 2015.
10.

STATEMENTS FROM THE LEADER OF COUNCIL/EXECUTIVE MEMBERS

Keith Baker, Leader of the Council made the following statement:
Firstly, Mr Mayor, I would like to add my thanks on what is a very, very momentous
occasion for this Council. You are the first Sikh Mayor that we have had and that is really
ground breaking. So congratulations.
I would also like to welcome Laura Blumenthal and John Jarvis to the Council Chamber. I
am sure that they will be in for an interesting time as they learn the ropes and we go
through the year.
Before I talk about my Executive for the coming year I would like to make a few comments
on the recent “triple” elections. Due to the parliamentary elections many of us had a direct
exposure of more than one local authority. Inevitably this leads to a comparison of each
authority on their ability to run elections. I can say based on my experience and I believe of
others, is that Wokingham is far ahead of these other authorities in the key areas of
resident interaction and ability to run a complex operation. On behalf of all residents and
candidates I would like to put on record our extreme thanks to Andrew Moulton, Alison
Wood and her team for their sensitivity to residents’ issues, general helpfulness and
smooth operation. I know that our neighbouring authorities could certainly learn a lot from
them as I keep on telling them again and again.
What happened on 7th May was exceptional and the resulting success for the
Conservative Party was a crystal clear endorsement of our policies both nationally and
locally. Let me highlight just one of those local policies. For the second year in a row the
Liberal Democrats had as a key election message opposition to the regeneration of the
Town Centre, especially around Elms Field. Again, for the second year in a row their
views were totally rejected by the electorate. Last year the Liberal Democrats dismissed
the result saying that the low turnout meant it was not a true reflection of resident’s views

as so many did not vote. Clearly with turnouts being above 70% in all town and Borough
wards they cannot use that excuse this time!
In fact the rejection of their views on the town centre regeneration was emphatic by a huge
margin. Just looking at the wards within Wokingham Town shows how much that rejection
actually was. For the Borough the Conservatives had 48% of the vote compared to the
Liberal Democrat vote of 23%. A similar comparison of the Town elections was not as
easy as the Liberal Democrats only managed to nominate 3 out of the 25 candidates
required. They were all standing in one ward leaving 7 wards without a single Liberal
Democrat candidate. So much for their passion to defend Elms Field! However, there
were other candidates so using them as the opposition the Conservatives had 52% of the
vote whilst the opposition had 36% of the vote.
I hope now that the Liberal Democrats will accept this comprehensive rejection of their
regeneration views and work with us going forward. Councillor Bray often lectures us in
this Chamber that we do not listen to residents’ views. They have a great opportunity in the
opposition leader’s speech to demonstrate that they do listen. They can do this by
acknowledging that residents do want the regeneration, including Elms Field, to go ahead
and that they will cease their total opposition and instead work with us to refine and
improve the plans.
Now let me turn to my Executive including the Deputies. I can announce that there is no
change in the Executive either in the membership or their portfolios. There are a couple of
changes in the Deputy positions with Councillor Halsall taking on the Deputy role for
Highways and Planning from Councillor Richards. My thanks to Councillor Richards and
his predecessor Councillor Singleton for their efforts over the last year. I have also
reviewed the role of the Deputy for Communications and have decided that this is no
longer needed.
The next year is going to be a difficult but interesting one. We do not know what the
financial landscape is going to look like but one certainty is that money will be “short”.
Remember we are the lowest funded authority in the country. Notwithstanding that we will
do our utmost to make the savings required whilst protecting key services. On the
economic development front the introduction of a Deputy focussing on this area is
beginning to get some traction both in the wider area through the LEP and more locally
through assisting business start ups. In the next year we will build on this and keep that
momentum going.
I have already spoken at length about the town centre regeneration, but there are other
aspects to this portfolio. Community development and the voluntary sector have not had
much focus over previous years and so I wanted to change this going forward. The
Deputy for regeneration now has a specific role with the voluntary sector. The initial
objective over the next year is to provide council with better visibility of the voluntary and
community activity across our Borough. This third sector plays a vital part in many of our
residents’ lives and needs to be recognised, supported and developed.
Education is extremely important to both residents and the Council and we will continue to
have a strong focus this coming year. We will build on our strengths and formal
partnerships to raise awareness, understand the changing patterns of the needs of
children and young people and effectively meet them. We will improve emotional health
services in partnership with Health, by leading with the police the Safeguarding Children’s
Board, the Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy and deliver an integrated and holistic offer

for children with special needs and disability. The school in the south, scheduled to open
in September 2016, is progressing well with great involvement from parents, residents and
providers alongside the Council. We expect to hold a strategic review of primary places
throughout the Borough with a view to building potentially several new primary schools
over the next few years.
As most of you know we have the highest car ownership in the country which means we
have to build extra capacity through new roads. The next year will see the projects for the
six new roads being progressed. This will include extensive consultation, as already
carried out on a couple of them, to help us shape the roads both in terms of location but
also in terms of design. The two new park and ride facilities should be completed and the
“Greenways” project linking cycleways and footpaths will be progressed.
From an environmental perspective the impact of flooding will be a major focus this coming
year. This will include a “Flooding Action Plan” plus flood relief for the A327. The other
major area will be our country parks with a Country Parks Strategy being completed as
well.
Whilst these are all outward facing activities the constant drive to improve internal services
will continue. This will cover things like improved access to services and better
responsiveness to residents. We will investigate every opportunity to save money through
shared services with other local authorities. Transparency and governance for our
companies will continue to be improved as we move into a different phase of their
evolution.
Finally, I would like to say that these are only the highlights of our plans for the coming
year. If you wish to find out more please do not hesitate to contact the relevant Executive
Member.
Prue Bray, the Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group made the following statement:
Mr Mayor, I would like to congratulate both you and your Deputy on your positions and we
look forward to many exciting council meetings under your control.
I think we know that the elections earlier this month were not kind to the Liberal Democrats
and locally, Dee Tomlin and Kay Gilder, two long serving and diligent councillors lost their
seats. I would like to pay tribute to them for all their hard work on behalf of residents for
over 20 years. They did not deserve to lose. The Conservatives gained two seats. I was
going to say that this does not mean residents endorse everything they do, but clearly the
Leader of the Council believes that is exactly what it proves. How people voted in these
local elections had more to do with national politics and fear of a Labour/SNP Government
than it did with local issues. You may pretend all you like, the wider world knows. Dee
and Kay lost their seats not because of anything that they had done, but because of the
General Election.
Now it is clear that the local election results are going to encourage Conservatives on this
Council that they can do whatever they like. The Leader of the Council’s speech seems to
indicate this is exactly what they do think. We know there is considerable opposition to the
Council’s plan for the Town Centre, but contrary to what the Leader of the Council said we
have never opposed regeneration per se and neither do the majority of residents. We
recognise that something has to happen to the town centre and we have said that over
and over again so please do not misrepresent our position. We do not agree with building

on Elms Field and neither do a large section of the population. No doubt you are going to
continue with it, that is your prerogative but the manner in which you do it could be a little
bit more gracious than you have shown so far this evening. The Leader of the Council did
however skip over the relatively good performance by the Liberal Democrats on
Wokingham Town Council and neglected to mention that the Conservatives actually lost
three Wokingham Town Council seats, two to independents and one to a Liberal
Democrat. We will continue to fight hard to protect Elms Field and the other things that
we believe are wrong with your plans we will continue to oppose in the coming year.
We also know that a lot people are unhappy with the state of the roads. The traffic, the
parking and highways generally, that they have significant and justified concerns about the
high levels of congestion on the roads of our Borough and about the routes of the
proposed new roads. These concerns are reflected in our case work and in the calls and
emails that we get from residents. You can therefore expect us to fight hard for something
better on highways issues this year.
I have referred to the fact that it would be a mistake to think that gaining two seats from the
Liberal Democrats was a ringing endorsement for the way the Conservatives are running
this Council. But it would also be a mistake to think that the results of the elections mean
that the Liberal Democrats are finished as a political party either locally or nationally. Party
membership locally and nationally has risen about a third since polling day. These are
new people, not former members who have re-joined. Why have they come forward now?
Because they have recognised the need to stand up for liberal values, now more than
ever, because like the councillors in this Liberal Democrat Group they believe in liberalism,
in tolerance, humanity and community. They believe that civil liberties matter, that society
should look after its disadvantaged and that as it says in preamble to our Party’s
Constitution that no one should be enslaved by poverty, ignorance or conformity. We may
be fewer in number this year, but we know what we stand for and we are fully prepared to
carry on fighting for what we believe in and I look forward to what promised to be an
interesting year.
11.
MEMBER QUESTION TIME
In accordance with the agreed procedure the Mayor invited Members to submit questions
to the appropriate Members
11.1 Gary Cowan had asked the Leader of Council the following question:
Question
I was advised by a resident on 24th February this year that a very substantial tree with a
tree preservation order on it located on Sheerlands Road along with a significant
established ancient hedgerow and conifer hedge which was approximately 10 foot high
and 60 foot long were removed and the following day a substantial 6 foot high fence was
erected in their place. The new fence resulted in the removal of two gates which had been
there for more than 30 years and were established rights of way.
The following day I notified Wokingham Borough Council of this but my concern is that
the problem impacts on several departments within the council from Highways to rights of
way to planning , enforcement, land ownership, Trees and landscape and no doubt legal.
In addition the size of the substantial tree meant it may also have required a felling licence
which I understand can only be issued by the Forestry Commission.
Due to the many departments involved can I ask you as Leader of the Council would you
please take responsibility for ensuring that all the relevant departments investigate this

matter and report directly to you as it seems to fall into several Executive members
portfolios which could only complicate investigation
Answer
Thank you for your question Councillor Cowan. As you correctly state this issue entails
the work of a number of our teams. I can confirm that I am working closely with everyone
involved and I will make sure you are kept up to date as things progress.
Before I get to the specific incident here I would like to make a few general comments
about ignoring a Tree Preservation Order or a TPO and cutting down that tree can only be
considered as an act of outright vandalism. There is a reason why a TPO is on a tree as it
will be an exceptional specimen of that type of tree and needs to be preserved for all to
see; the amenity value of it. Almost without exception the tree will be a mature sample
which means it will be a big tree.
Too often people who do this simply laugh at the law as the fine will be derisory and all
they need to do is to plant a sapling as a replacement which will be tiny in comparison to
the original tree. As Leader I am already urging all the relevant sections involved to
prosecute any future perpetrators to the maximum allowable by law.
Even then it will be totally unsatisfactory as it will take generations for any replacement
planting to reach the same quality of the cut down tree. However, that is a deficiency in the
law rather than the Council. Now let me turn to this specific incident.
The tree was covered by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) and a Tree Replacement
Notice is being prepared which will be served on the private landowner to secure an
appropriate replacement. Unfortunately, the hedge that has been removed was not
protected.
The fence that has been erected on the land is within the public highway. We have written
to the person who erected the fence requesting its removal from highway land.
The gate allowed access to an open area beyond the property. The removal of the gate
does not need permission from the Council. If the replacement of the gate with a fence
restricts residents’ access generally, this is a private matter between these individuals as
unfortunately there is no public right of way over this land.
A number of different sections of the Council have worked together to establish the above
position and co-ordination of the issues rests within the Head of Development
Management and Regulatory Services. Any action taken will include the Council’s own
legal team. This will ensure that there is a coordinated approach to address all of the
issues and you as local Member and the relevant Executive Members will be kept
informed of progress.
Supplementary Question
You say that cutting down a Tree Preservation Order, (TPO) tree is an act of vandalism
and I would agree with that. In my opinion, this case is an example of environmental
vandalism on an epic scale, the like of which I have not seen or heard of in the 50 odd
years that I have lived in Berkshire. It was a much loved tree that was 40ft high with a
superb canopy, with a TPO and set against a backdrop of an established 14ft rural hedge
that stretched for several hundred yards.

My reason for specifically asking you the question was to ensure that the involved
departments all came together, but this has not really happened because on 5 May I got
an email from an Officer which suggested that we might wish to secure replacement
planting and that this would give us a more certain result with less expense to the public
purse than a prosecution. In your last paragraph you say that I will be kept informed of
progress, yet I reported this matter on 24 February and I have had some contact with one
particular Officer, but nothing from anyone else that you refer to in your answer.
As I said the tree was well over 40ft and has been removed. The question would be:








What actions are available to us now over and above what you suggest?
What action is there to deal with removal of the fence? You say that nothing can be
done.
The pile of logs from the felled tree would indicate that an amount of tree to be
removed which would require a Forestry Commission permitted licence which I did
bring to the attention of the Council. Did the Council go to the Forestry Commission
and suggest that this tree required a Forestry Commission license to fell it?
You do say that the fence will be removed and replaced, but obviously nothing will be
there to replace the two access gates which actually went from highway land to
highway land. They do not involve private land.
What action will be taken against the company that cut down the TPO tree? They do
have an involvement in this.
What message does this send out to residents and more importantly, when we are
building 13,300 houses and it appears we do nothing when a TPO tree is cut down? I
believe acting this way, when the public purse is more important than environmental
vandalism, has set a precedent that shames us all.

Supplementary Answer
Thank you for the multiple supplementary questions. Clearly there are too many to answer
here, so I will make the commitment that by the end of next week you will get a full written
answer.
12.

POLITICAL BALANCE OF THE COUNCIL AND ALLOCATION AND
APPOINTMENT TO SEATS ON COUNCIL COMMITTEES/PANELS/BOARDS
The Council considered a revised report, which was tabled at the meeting, on the political
balance of the Council the appointment to the Council’s Committees/Panels/Board in
accordance with the wishes of the Political Groups.
The report set out a number of recommendations which the Council was asked to
consider.
It was proposed by Keith Baker and seconded by Pauline Jorgensen that the
recommendations be approved.
RESOLVED:
That Council:
1) having reviewed the representation of the political groups on the Council, confirms
that it has 47 Conservative Group Members, 5 Liberal Democrat Group Members, 1
Independent Member and 1 Labour Member (as set out in Para 1.1);
2) approves the appointment and composition of Committees and Boards as set out in
Para 2.1;

3) approved the allocation of seats on Committees and Boards on the basis that, of the
94 seats (as set out in Para 3.5), 83 be allocated to the Conservative Group and 11 be
allocated to the Liberal Democrat Group;
4) approves the proposals submitted by the respective Group Leaders and that those
Members be appointed to the Committees and Boards as set out in Appendix 1;
5) agree that the principles of proportionality be applied when Members are appointed to
Sub Committees, Panels or Working Groups;
6) note the appointment of the Independent Person to assist the work of the Standards
Committee as set out in Appendix 1;
7) note the elected Member representatives on the Health and Wellbeing Board, as set
out in Appendix 1, as nominated by the Leader of Council in accordance with Section
194 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.
13.

APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMEN AND VICE-CHAIRMEN OF COUNCIL
COMMITTEES AND BOARDS 2015/2016
The Council considered the appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Council
Committees/Panels/Boards in accordance with the wishes of the Political Groups, as set
out in Appendix 2, circulated at the meeting.
It was proposed by Keith Baker and seconded by Pauline Jorgensen that the appoinments
be approved.
RESOLVED: That the appointment of Chairman and Vice-Chairman of Council
Committees/Panels/Boards be agreed, as set out in Appendix 2 to these minutes.
14.

APPOINTMENT TO PANELS/WORKING GROUPS/JOINT COMMITTEES AND
VARIOUS BODIES 2015/16
Members were asked to refer to a list of each political groups’ nominations to various
Panels, Working Groups, Joint Committees and Various Bodies as circulated at the
meeting as Appendix 3.
It was proposed by Keith Baker and seconded by Pauline Jorgensen that the list of
nominations set out in Appendix 3 be approved.
RESOLVED: That Members be appointed to the Council’s Panels/Working Groups/Joint
Committee and Various Bodies as set out in Appendix 3 to these Minutes.
15.
APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2015/16
Members were asked to refer to a list of each political groups’ nomination to various
Outside Bodies as circulated at the meeting at Appendix 4.
It was proposed by Keith Baker and seconded by Pauline Jorgensen that the list of
nominations set out in Appendix 4 be approved.
RESOLVED: That Members be appointed to the Outside Bodies as set out in Appendix 4
to these Minutes.

16.
CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION
The Council considered a report on proposed changes to the Council Constitution
including changes to the Council Rules of Procedure, Committees of the Council, a revised
Code of Conduct for Councillors and changes to a number of documents relating to
Officers; including the Officers’ Code of Conduct.
It was proposed by Paul Swaddle and seconded by Prue Bray that the proposed changes
be approved.
RESOLVED: That the following changes to the Council’s Constitution be approved:
1) Chapter 4.2 – Council Rules of Procedure
(a) The addition of a new paragraph to Rule 4.2.15.5 Recorded Votes as follows:
“A recorded vote will be required on any business relating to approving the
budget, setting the council tax or issuing precepts. This also includes any
amendments proposed to any of these items of business.”
(b) The addition of a new Rule 4.2.24 Statements from the Council Owned
Companies as set out in the report;
2) Chapter 4.4 – Committees of the Council – Health and Wellbeing Board
(a) Delete “b) Adults Strategic Partnership” from Rule 4.4.44;
(b) The following additional paragraph be added:
“4.4.45 Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committees
The Health and Wellbeing Board has the ability to set up sub committees to
undertake any of its functions. The Health and Wellbeing Board will agree the terms
of reference and membership of any such sub-committee and any such terms of
reference will subsequently be included in the Council’s Constitution.”
3) Chapter 5.5 – Protocol for Decision Making by Individual Executive Members
The addition of the following to Rule 5.5.1:
“o) Designation of a neighbourhood area following consultation with the local Ward
Member(s) and appropriate Town or Parish Council.”
4) Chapter 9.2 – Code of Conduct for Councillors
Revised version of Chapter 9.2 as attached at Appendix 1 to the report;
5) Section 11 – Officers
Revised versions of the following documents as attached at Appendix 2 to the report:
Chapter 11.4 – Officers’ Code of Conduct
Chapter 11.5 – Officer Employment Procedure Rules
Chapter 11.6 – Delegated Powers Relating to Staffing Matters

TITLE

Changes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Structure

FOR CONSIDERATION BY

Council on 23 July 2015

WARD

None Specific

DIRECTOR

Andrew Moulton, Head of Governance and
Improvement Services

OUTCOME / BENEFITS TO THE COMMUNITY
An efficient Overview and Scrutiny structure.

RECOMMENDATION:
Council is asked to:
1) agree that the Corporate Services and Community Partnership Overview and
Scrutiny Committees be amalgamated to become the Community and Corporate
Overview and Scrutiny Committee;
2) agree the terms of reference of the amalgamated committee as set out in Appendix
1 to the report;
3) agree that the Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee consist
of 7 Conservative Group Members and 1 Liberal Democrat Member, plus 2
substitute Members per group, as advised by the Group Leaders;
4) note that the Chairman and Vice Chairman will be appointed at the first meeting of
the amalgamated Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
SUMMARY OF REPORT
This report invites the Council to consider the recommendation of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee that the Community Partnerships Overview and
Scrutiny Committee be disbanded and its functions and responsibilities, as set out in the
Council’s Constitution, be amalgamated with the Corporate Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee to create a Community and Corporate Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Background
The present Overview and Scrutiny Committee structure of an overarching Overview
and Scrutiny Management Committee and four Overview and Scrutiny Committees,
(Children’s Services, Community Partnerships, Corporate Services and Health) was
agreed by the Council in May 2013 following a review by the Scrutiny Structures
Working Group.
The Management Committee is able under its Terms of Reference to propose
amendments to the composition and Terms of Reference of Overview and Scrutiny
Committees to the Council on the basis of political proportionality, (Para 6.1.4(a) of the
Council’s Constitution).
Chapter 1.1.4 of the Council’s Constitution also states that the Monitoring Officer will
monitor and review the operation of the Constitution to ensure that its aims and
principles are given full effect.
Analysis of Issues
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee structure agreed in May 2013 reflected the
anticipated need at that time for a Management Committee and four sub-committees
based upon expected workload and the objective of creating scrutiny committees which
had different areas of focus. Whilst the terms of reference of all the Committees were
drafted flexibly, the Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee was intended
to have an internal Council focus whereas the Community Partnerships Overview and
Scrutiny Committee was intended to have a more external focus and include within its
remit the exercise of the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities and flood risk
management responsibilities, (Para 6.2.3.1 of the Council’s Constitution).
Given that the current structure had been in place for two years it is was felt timely in
June to reconsider whether it was necessary to continue with the current number of
Overview and Scrutiny Committees based upon the past workload of the Committees
and the need to use Officer and Member resources in the most effective and efficient
way possible. Given the relatively light workload of the Corporate Services and
Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committees in the last municipal year,
and anticipated future workload in 2015/2016, it was recommended to the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee that the number of committees be reduced by the
deletion of the Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
functions and responsibilities to be transferred to the Corporate Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee which would be renamed the Community and Corporate Overview
and Scrutiny Committee. These proposals had the support of the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee at its meeting held on 1 June 2015. It is not felt that
these proposals would detract from the operation of Overview and Scrutiny overall.
The suggested name of the new Committee reflects feedback and suggestions from
Overview and Scrutiny Members.
The proposed Terms of Reference of the new Committee and other consequential
amendments to the Council’s Constitution are set out in the Appendix 1 to this report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION
The Council faces severe financial challenges over the coming years as a result
of the austerity measures implemented by the Government and subsequent
reductions to public sector funding. It is estimated that Wokingham Borough
Council will be required to make budget reductions in excess of £20m over the
next three years and all Executive decisions should be made in this context.
How much will it
Cost/ (Save)
Current Financial
Year (Year 1)
Next Financial Year
(Year 2)
Following Financial
Year (Year 3)

Revenue or
Capital?

£1,600 (Save)

Is there sufficient
funding – if not
quantify the Shortfall
Yes

£2,500 (Save)

Yes

Revenue

£2,500 (Save)

Yes

Revenue

Revenue

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision
The Chairman of the Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee
receives a Special Responsibility Allowance therefore the saving above relates to a
reduction in Members’ Allowance. There will also be a small administrative saving e.g.
agenda printing costs which has not yet been quantified.
List of Background Papers
Council’s Constitution Section 6
Contact Kevin Jacob
Telephone No 0118 974 6058
Date 13 July 2015

Service Governance and Improvement
Services
Email kevin.jacob@wokinghan.gov.uk
Version No. 1.00

APPENDIX 1
CHAPTER 6.2 – OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES TERMS OF REFERENCE
6.2.1 Appointment of Overview and Scrutiny Committees
The Council shall establish the following Overview and Scrutiny Committees:
a)

Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 8 Members

b)

Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 8 Members

bc) Community and Corporate Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
- 8 Members
cd) Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 10 Members
The Chairmen of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees must be members of the
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee in order that they can feed back the work
of the Committees. If the Chairman of a Scrutiny Committee is unable to attend a
Management Committee meeting then he/she will arrange for another member from the
Committee to attend the Management Committee to provide feedback on the work of the
Committee. This Member will be entitled to take part in discussions at the Management
Committee but will not be entitled to any voting rights.
Representatives of the Church of England Diocese and Roman Catholic Diocese, together
with Parent Governor Representatives will automatically be entitled to be members of the
Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee. When considering Education
related issues these representatives will automatically be entitled to sit on the Overview
and Scrutiny Management Committee and/or any of the other Committees or Task and
Finish Groups and vote on such matters.
In accordance with Rule 6.3.9 the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee,
Overview and Scrutiny Committees and Task and Finish Groups established by the
Committee or Committees may appoint non-voting co-opted members as necessary.
In addition to the standing membership of the Committees, the Chairman and ViceChairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee shall have the right to
attend and take part in Overview and Scrutiny Committees but will not have voting rights.
Members will be appointed to the Overview and Scrutiny Committees at Annual Council on
the basis of political proportionality.
6.2.1.1 Substitutes
Two substitute members from each political group for each Committee shall be appointed
at Annual Council for the forthcoming Municipal Year.
6.2.1.2 Appointment of Substitute
If any member of the Committee is unable to attend a meeting of that body they may
appoint one of the nominated substitute members for the Committee to act in their place at
the meeting. The appointment shall only take effect if the Member making the
appointment, or in the Member’s absence their Group Leader or Political Assistant, notifies
the Service Manager Democratic Services Manager, or their representative, no later than

midday of the day of the meeting that they will be unable to attend the meeting and the
name of the appointed substitute member.
Once a substitute member has been appointed to attend a specific meeting then the
original member cannot attend the meeting in a voting capacity.
If a substitute member attends a meeting which is subsequently adjourned to a later date
they must also attend the reconvened meeting.
When undertaking a scrutiny review membership of the body carrying out the review, i.e.
the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee or one of its Committees, should
remain the same. Therefore substitutes will only be allowed at the beginning of a review
provided they are able to carry out the substitute role throughout the review.
6.2.1.3 Changing Substitutes
A substitute may be changed during a municipal year provided that the Service Manager
Democratic Services Manager, or their representative, receives a written request from
either the Leader of the appropriate political Group or the relevant Political Assistant. Any
such change will become effective at the next Committee meeting or within 14 days
whichever is the later.
6.2.1.4 Training
Members who are appointed as substitutes will be expected to have undertaken the same
training as those members of the relevant Committee.
6.2.2 Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference
6.2.2.1 Role of the Committee
The role of the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to scrutinise,
review and assist with the policy development of:
a)

those matters relating to the Children’s Act 2004, “Every Child Matters” and any
subsequent legislation relating to the delivery of Children’s Services by the
Council;

b)

those matters set out in Section 499 of the Education Act 1996 (as amended by
Section 9 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998) and all other
legislation such as the Children Act 1989;

c)

services that support the Council’s vision and corporate priorities for children and
young people including, amongst others, the following areas:
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)
v)
vi)
vii)
viii)
ix)

Schools;
Early Years Settings and Children’s Centres;
Safeguarding and Child Protection;
Looked After Children and Young People;
Family Support Services for Children and Young People;
Services for Children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities;
Inclusion and Attendance;
School Transport; and
Youth Services.

d)

those matters that relate to the implementation of designated programmes within
the Health and Wellbeing Strategy that relate to children and young people.

6.2.2.2 Terms of Reference
In carrying out its role the Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall:
a)

review and/or scrutinise the decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of any of the Council’s Executive functions relating to services for
children and young people;

b)

monitor and review performance indicators relating to services for children and
young people and to question the relevant Executive Member/s and senior
Officer/s thereon, reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee where necessary;

c)

review those areas, within the remit of the Committee, included in the Children
and Young People’s Plan Corporate Plan Health & Wellbeing Strategy and other
major Council Plans and Policies where targets are not being met or progress is
slow;

d)

review those areas, within the remit of the Committee, which have been identified
for improvement through Ofsted and other formal external assessments or
inspections that identify areas where targets are not being met or progress is
slow;

e)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee conduct
scrutiny reviews or undertake projects from the corporately agreed work
programme;

f)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee undertake
Policy Development and Review functions as set out in Rule 6.1.3;

g)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Committee, the Executive, Council or Council Committees;

h)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern within the Committee’s remit referred to it by non-Executive
Members of the Council, Corporate Leadership Team, members of the public, or
external organisations, including the consideration of requests made as a
“Councillor Call for Action” as defined in Section 119 of the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;

i)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to review
Executive decisions within the Committee’s remit which have been ‘called-in’;

j)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee exercise
the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities in relation to children and young
people as set out in Part 3, Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006;

k)

constitute and appoint to Task and Finish Groups as necessary;

l)

prepare reports and recommendations concerning its activities for consideration
by the Executive or partner authorities as set out within Part 5, Chapter 2,
Section 122 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;

m)

scrutinise and review the relevant work of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s
Partnership Groups;

6.2.3 Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of
Reference
6.2.3.1 Role of the Committee
The role of the Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be to:
a)

scrutinise and review the relevant work of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s
Partnership Groups;

b)

exercise the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities as set out in Section 19
of the Police Justice Act 2006;

c)

exercise the Council’s flood risk management responsibilities under Schedule 2,
Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011.

6.2.3.2 Terms of Reference
In carrying out its role the Community Partnerships Overview and Scrutiny Committee
shall:
a)

review and/or scrutinise the work of and decisions made by the Health and
Wellbeing Boards’ Partnership Groups ;

b)

monitor and review any performance indicators that may be developed relating to
the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Partnership Groups and to question the
relevant Executive Member/s, Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
senior Council Officer/s and representatives of partner authorities thereon,
reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee where
necessary;

c)

conduct scrutiny reviews or undertake projects under the remit of the Committee
as may be allocated by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee from
the corporately agreed work programme;

d)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee undertake
Policy Development and Review functions as set out in Rule 6.1.3;

e)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by the Executive, Council or Council
Committees;

f)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by non-Executive Members of the Council,
Corporate Leadership Team, members of the public, external organisations or
relevant partner authorities, including the consideration of requests made as a
“Councillor Call for Action” as defined in Section 119 of the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;

g)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to review
Executive decisions which have been ‘called-in’;

h)

exercise the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities as set out in Part 3,
Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006;

i)

exercise the Council’s flood risk management responsibilities under Schedule 2,
Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011;

j)

constitute and appoint to Task and Finish Groups as necessary;

k)

prepare reports and recommendations concerning its activities for consideration
by the Executive or partner authorities as set out within Part 5, Chapter 2,
Section 122 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;

6.2.34 Community and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms
of Reference
6.2.34.1 Role of the Committee
The role of the Community and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee will
be to scrutinise, review and assist with the policy development of:
a)

the Council’s budget and policy framework;

b)

services that support the Council’s vision and corporate priorities, excluding
matters relating to Children and services which are covered by other scrutiny
bodies.

ca) scrutinise and review the relevant work of the Health and Wellbeing Board’s
Partnership Groups;
db) exercise the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities as set out in Section 19
of the Police Justice Act 2006;
ec) exercise the Council’s flood risk management responsibilities under Schedule 2,
Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011.

6.2.4.2 Terms of Reference
In carrying out its role the Community and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee shall:
a)

review and/or scrutinise the decisions made or actions taken in correction with
the discharge of any of the Council’s Executive functions under its remit;

b)

monitor and review performance indicators related to Council services within the
remit of the Committee, including the Council’s revenue and capital budget, and
to question the relevant Executive Member/s and senior Officer/s thereon,
reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee where
necessary;

c)

review those areas, within the remit of the Committee, included in the Corporate
Plan and other major Council Plans and Policies where targets are not being met
or progress is slow;

da) review and/or scrutinise the work of and decisions made by the Health and
Wellbeing Board’ss’ Partnership Groups ;
eb) monitor and review any performance indicators that may be developed relating to
the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Partnership Groups and to question the
relevant Executive Member/s, Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
senior Council Officer/s and representatives of partner authorities thereon,
reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee where
necessary;

fd)

review those areas, within the remit of the Committee, which have been identified
for improvement through any formal external assessments or inspections that
identify areas where targets are not being met or progress is slow;

ge) conduct scrutiny reviews or projects of a service specific nature or within the
remit of the Committee, including those which are cross cutting or corporate
wide, as may be allocated by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
from the corporately agreed work programme, including the preparation of
reports and recommendations for consideration by the Executive;
hf)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee undertake
Policy Development and Review functions as set out in Rule 6.1.3;

jg)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by the Executive, Council or Council
Committees;

kh) at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by non-Executive Members of the Council, the
Corporate Leadership Team, members of the public, or external organisations,
including the consideration of requests made as a “Councillor Call for Action” as
defined in Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health
Act 2007;
li)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee review
and/or scrutinise decisions made, or actions taken, in connection with the
discharge of the Council’s functions;

mj) at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to review
Executive decisions which have been ‘called-in’;

nk) at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee exercise
the Council’s crime and disorder responsibilities as set out in Part 3, Section 19
of the Police and Justice Act 2006;
oi)

exercise the Council’s flood risk management responsibilities under Schedule 2,
Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011;

pl)

constitute and appoint to Task and Finish Groups as necessary;

qm) prepare reports and recommendations concerning its activities for consideration
by the Executive or partner authorities as set out within Part 5, Chapter 2,
Section 122 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.
6.2.45 Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference
6.2.45.1 Terms of Reference
In carrying out its role the Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall:
a)

review or scrutinise within the following framework and in accordance with the
provisions of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards
and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013:
i) arrangements made by local National Health Service (NHS) bodies to secure
hospital and community health services for the inhabitants of Wokingham
Borough;
ii)
the provision of such services to those inhabitants;
iii) the provision of family health services, personal medical services, personal
dental services, pharmacy and NHS ophthalmic services to ensure that they
are high quality, prompt, reliable and cost effective;
iv) the public health arrangements in the area;
v)
the planning of health services including plans made in co-operation with
local authorities setting out a strategy for improving both the health of the
local population and the provision of health care to that population;
vi) the arrangements made by relevant NHS bodies for consulting and
involving patients and the public under the duty placed on them by Section
242 of the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended by the Health and
Social Care Act 2012);
vii) proposals by NHS bodies for “significant variation and significant
development” in services; and
viii) social care services and other health related services jointly commissioned
by the Council and local health bodies;
ix) review the Quality Accounts of local relevant health service providers and
make comment.

b)

review or scrutinise any other issues related to health or social care as they affect
the population of Wokingham Borough;

c)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by the Executive, Council or Council
Committees;

d)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee investigate
matters of concern referred to it by non-Executive Members of the Council,
Corporate Leadership Team, members of the public, external organisations or a
responsible person, including the consideration of requests made as a
“Councillor Call for Action” as defined in Section 119 of the Local Government
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007;

e)

comment on the NHS Health Check programme;

f)

review or scrutinise the work of the Local Healthwatch;

g)

make reports and recommendations to a responsible person, the Overview and
Scrutiny Management Committee, the Council’s Executive and other relevant
bodies on any matter reviewed or scrutinised by the Committee in accordance
with the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 ; and
A responsible person includes
i)
ii)
iii)
iv)

NHS England;
a Clinical Commissioning Group which arranges the provision of services to
persons residing in the area of the authority;
an NHS trust or NHS foundation trust which provides services to persons
residing in the area of the authority.
a body or person, other than an NHS trust or NHS foundation trust, which
provides any relevant services to persons residing in the area of the local
authority.

This includes providers of services commissioned by NHS England, Clinical
Commissioning Groups and local authorities.
g)

request information from the Care Quality Commission and to make reports to
the Care Quality Commission on local health and social care providers/services
as appropriate.

h)

conduct scrutiny reviews or undertake projects under the remit of the Committee
as may be allocated by the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee from
the corporately agreed work programme;

i)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee undertake
Policy Development and Review functions as set out in Rule 6.1.3;

j)

at the request of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to review
Executive decisions which have been ‘called-in’;

k)

constitute and appoint to Task and Finish Groups as necessary;

l)

monitor and review any performance indicators that may be developed relating to
the Health and Wellbeing Board’s Partnership Groups and to question the
relevant Executive Member/s, Chairman of the Health and Wellbeing Board,
senior Council Officer/s and representatives of partner authorities thereon,

reporting to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee where
necessary.
6.2.45.2 Proposals by a Relevant Person for Substantial Variation and Substantial
Development in local health services
When a responsible person proposes a substantial development of the health service in
the local authority’s area, or for a substantial variation in the provision of such service it
must consult the local authority.
The form of consultation and the process that the local authority has to follow is set out in
the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny)
Regulations 2013.
6.2.56 Changes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Structure
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee may request that the Council
discontinue any Overview and Scrutiny Committee and/or constitute alternative or
additional Committees.
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee may propose future amendments to
the terms of reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to the Council.

